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Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited
Annual report and accounts 2020

Strategic Report

Business model and strategy

Waterlogic Group (“Waterlogic™ or the “Group”) operates as a vertically integrated business engaged in the design,
manufacture, distribution, rental, servicing and sale of Point of Use (“POU") water coolers, Under-The-Sink (‘UTS') and water
cooling and filtration equipment (including bottled water) in worldwide markets. The Group also engages in the distribution,
rental, servicing and sale of coffee equipment in certain markets.

Business activity
The Group made the following principal acquisitions during the year.

Date Entities acquired Total consideration . | Description of business and territory

28 August 2020 Bronté Water Coolers $2.8 million Bottled water and POU business based in
Limited and Bronté West Yorkshire, England
Spring Water Limited

20 October 2020 Tipperary Pure Irish $12.5 million Bottled water and POU business based in
Water (Sales) Unlimited Tipperary, lreland
Company

30 November 2020 Hidrospot S.A.S. $4.3 million POU business based in Bogota, Colombia

30 December 2020 Vatternet Aqua Concilio | $3.9 million Swedish POU business with B2B and
AB, Thoreau HoReCa elements, and is also a
International AB and franchisor of an HoReCa brand used in
Waterconcept AB many other European countries

31 December 2020 Prisma Water SpA and $1.6 million POU machine provider in the HoReCa
Prisma Water Home SpA sector, based in Santiago, Chile

Review of business

2020 was clearly a year in which COVID-18 significantly impacted many businesses, globally. Waterlogic was also impacted
in 2020 by COVID-19, but the resilience of our recurring revenue Rental & Service model enabled us to deliver year-on-year
growth in Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA. Further, our Operating Cash generation increased substantially year-on-year. Our
recurring Rental & Service revenues growth reflected the 4.7% growth in our year end Machines in Field and, even with lower
product sales, we still delivered overall growth of 1.3%. This growth, re-structuring activities in 2019 & 2020, and prompt
COVID-19 related cost contro! actions enabled Waterogic to deliver 14.6% year-on-year increase in Adjusted EBITDA. In
2020, our Adjusted EBITDA return on sales increased to 34.4%, up from 30.4% in 2019. Waterogic's Operating Cash
generation in 2020 increased significantly over 2019, as we delivered margin growth, lowered Net Working Capital and
reduced capital expenditure. This performance, in particular the resilience and growth of our core Rental & Service model,
enabled us to successfully raise additional financing in 2020. Waterlogic is now well positioned for future organic growth,
complimented by acquisitions.

The Group considers the KPIs and financial measures of revenue, operating profit, adjusted operating profit, adjusted
EBITDA and Machines In Field to be key for the business.

Note 2020 2019
Revenue 5 $368.0 million $363.2 million
Operating (loss)/profit (2019 restated — see note 37) 7 $(55.7) million $18.2 million
Adjusted operating profit* 7 $62.5 million $57.2 million
Adjusted EBITDA® 7 $126.6 million $110.4 million
Machines In Field at year end : 576,376 550,272

* Adjusti jon costs; acquisition and integration related costs; gains on b in purch COVID-19 related cosls; Group ERP

Implemenlallnn costs and Iossesl(galns) on fnmlgn exchange movements. Adjusting items for operating profit also include amorﬂsallon ol acquired intangibles. See note 7 for further details.
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Strategic Report (continuedi

Review of business (continued)

Revenue increased by 1.3% to $368.0 million in 2020 through a combination of arganic growth and growth through acquisitions
in the year. The UK and mainland Europe revenue decreased by 0.6% due to the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on
consumable sales in the UK and on sales to distributors from Ireland, offset largely by increases in Rental and Service revenue
in Germany. Scandinavia decreased by 5.7% largely due to a drop in sales to distributors in Sweden and a fall in consumable
sales in Norway during the pandemic. However, the USA and Canada grew by 8.3%, despite a $4.6 million dfop in revenue
from distributors. This was due to a $13.6 million increase.in rental revenue resulting from strong organic MIF growth. Australia
fell by 3.5% due to the impact of the pandemic on direct sales. The increase in the revenue in the Rest of the World was
mostly due to the acquisition of Chile in September 2019.

The decrease in the operating profitin 2020 of $73.9 million was driven by the Gross Profit increase of $2.6 million offset by a
$76.5 million increase in expenses and foreign exchange losses, due primarily to the impact of foreign exchange losses of
$41.5 million in 2020 compared to a gain of $24.9 million in 2019. The primary driver in 2020 is the movement in the Euro
exchange rate which impacts external borrowings held in companies whose functional currency is GBP. The Administrative
expenses increased year on year by $10.5 million, due to an increase in corporate restructuring costs of $3.8 million, with
2020 restructuring costs resulting largely from the relocation of the US operations to a new single facility in Dallas Texas. ERP
implementation costs increased by $0.3 million, and the amortisation of acquired intangibles of $35.9 million increased by $3.1
million. There was an increase in acquisition and integration related costs of $0.9 million and $3.7 million of costs resulting
directly from the pandemic were booked to adjusting items, being due predominantly to the cost of employees on furlough that
were borne by the Group. Other Administrative expenses decreased by $1.3 million due to the impact of savings in
employment costs during the pandemic.

Marketing costs were reduced by $2.3 million year on year as a result of decisions made to reduce costs due to the pandemic.

Adjusted operating profit grew by $5.3 million from 2019 to 2020. This was driven by the UK and mainland Europe, which
increased adjusted operating profit by $1.4 million, despite the 1.3% decrease in revenue. This was achieved largely through
targeted cost cuts resulting from the pandemic and due to furlough support from govermments across the UK and mainiand
Europe. USA and Canada increased adjusted operating profit by $4.3 million due largely to the 8% increase in revenue in
2020 and cost benefits of consolidating operations into a single site, in Dallas. Both Australia and Scandinavia generated
lower adjusted operating profits in 2020 due to the lower revenues, but these impacts were largely offset by lower central
costs. Adjusted EBITDA increased by $16.2 million also due to the performance improvements noted above.

Machines in Field (MIF) increased by around 26,000 units in 2020. Of this increase, broadly 23,000 MIF were related to the
acquisitions made in 2020 and the rest organic, as we maintained net MIF growth through the pandemic.

The Total assets of the Group increased by $94.7 million during 2020. Acquisitions during the year added $9.5 million of
Goodwill to the Balance Sheet and $16.8 million of Other intangible Assets, notably Customer Relationships of $16.0 million.
The Group added $37.2 million, net, Point of Use Dispensers during the year, including $1.2 million through acquisitions, and
$14.7 million of Right Of Use Assets, including $0.7 million through acquisitions. Other capital expenditure amounted to $11.5
million, including $0.9 million through acquisitions. Current Assets increased by $55.9 million, despite a reduction in Trade
and other receivables of $4.0 million, as there was a $60.6 million increase in Cash and cash equivalents, following the raising
of finance in March and October 2020.

The Total liabilities of the Group increased by $220.9 million during 2020. The bank and other borrowings increased by $215.1
million, mainly to fund the acquisitions made during the year, while accrued interest due to the parent undertaking fell by $69.9
million, with this interest being capitalised and added to principal borrowings due to the parent undertaking. There was also a
reduction in current tax liabilities of $1.1 million.

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 23 and the consolidated balance sheet on pages 25 and 26.
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Strategic Report (continveq)

Board of Director activities during 2020

During 2020 the Board of Directors (‘The Board’) made a number of key strategic decisions to drive the Group forward. The
following were the key areas considered and decided upon by the Board during 2020:

Section

To proactively and effectively manage the business to minimise the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the
Group's profits and cash flows;

Protect and support our core capabilities, in particular our key people, so we are well placed to accelerate
growth activities when economies recover from the COVID 19 pandemic;

To continue to complement organic growih with business acquisitions that help build shareholder value and
then to ensure the successful integration of the acquired entities onto the existing operational platforms of the
Group;

To complete the expansion of the Group's manufacturing capabilities into the USA and the relocation of the
USA support functions to the new site in Dallas, Texas; .

To progress the Group's IT solutions;
To secure additional funding to continue the acquisition strategy of the Group;
To continue to invest in new and existing product development; and

To develop the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) strategy and the measurement of the Group's
ESG credentials.

172 statement

The Board is fully aware of its duty to promote the success of the Company pursuant to Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2016. Consequently, each Director must act in a way he considers, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have
regard (amongst other matters) to:

the likely consequence of any decision in the long term;

the interests of the Company’s employees;

the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;

the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

the need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

In compliance with section 172 of the Companies Act, the background to the above decisions taken by the Board are set out

below.

Managing the impact of COVID 19

The Board made a number of key decisions during 2020 to:

Support the cash flow of the Group through targeted and heightened credit control activities, tight internal control
over discretionary spend, suspend mergers and acquisitions (M&A) activity until the second half of the year and
control capital expenditure;

Support key customers, notably in the hospitality sector, and to introduce touchless watercooler functionality;
Protect employee jobs wherever possible, by accessing funds made available through various Government support
schemes, including the use of furloughs where practicable;

Protect employees well-being through clear communication, the implementation of work from home policies, the
introduction of a Group wide travel suspension and the purchasing of personal protection equipment for employees
required to operate in public and office environments;

Ensure the continuation of supply of manufactured product to the Group's businesses and customers;

Set out plans for remobilisation when lockdown restrictions are lifted in our markets around the World and set out
additional measures that would be required if the situation persists long into 2021;

Manage Group profitability through targeted redundancies, the use of various Government support schemes that
were made available, hiring and pay freezes and effective cost control in areas such as marketing and travel; and
Support local communities by, for example, providing free water units to pandemic field hospitals and testing stations
in the UK.

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited | Annual report and accounts 2020 3

o P



Strategic Report (continueq)

Section 172 statement (continued)
Acquisitions

Following the lifting of the Board’s suspension of M&A activity in the second half of the year, the Group completed 5§
acquisitions in 2020. The Board's acquisition strategy continues to be to complement organic growth with business
acquisitions that add shareholder value, and to successfully integrate the acquired entities onto the existing operational
platforms of the Group. As well as assessing forecast financial returns, the Board considers that acquisitions are value-adding
when they increase MIF density in existing markets, or they expand Group operations into a new geography and/or they add
a new strategic product to the Group's product portfolio. When making decisions on whether to acquire a specific business,
the Board considers the quality of the target's customers and machines in field portfolio, the potential impact on any existing
customer distributor base and reviews detailed post-acquisition integration plans. These will include assessing any potential
impacts on the employees or other key stakeholders of the acquired entities. To ensure that the acquisitions perform to
expectations, post-acquisition targets are set for all newly acquired businesses and potential synergies are identified and
tracked against these targets.

Board approval is required prior to any significant acquisition and appropriate financial, legal, commercial, technical and other
due diligence reviews are carried out and presented as part of the Board's approval process.

USA establishment of the new manufacturing facility and relocation of support functions

During 2019 the Board approved the establishment of a new manufacturing facility in Dallas, USA, to be implemented in 2020,
and the relocation of USA support functions to the same site. The facility offers the potential for tenders to be made for USA
State & Federal Government contracts and also increase the flexibility in product supply, as the facility would provide the
Group with further manufacturing capacity.

The benefits that result from the establishment of the facility, in early 2020, are a single-site working culture in the USA, which
improves both empioyee communications and customer service. Further, this move provides a reduction in employee travel
time, and so carbon footprint, and access to a larger and more cost-effective labour market, in Dallas, Texas. Benefits arising
from this move include enhanced cross functional interaction, a more cohesive customer experience, improved employee
retention and a more integrated and responsive organisation in the USA.

In addition to the physical relocation, the Board approved the implementation of a new ERP system in the USA, which resulted
in the consolidation of multiple legacy systems into one ERP solution. This resulted in the successful imptementation of the

new ERP system in the USA in May 2020.
IT Initiatives

The progress and risk profile of the ERP projects were reviewed by the Board during the regular Board Meetings in 2020, up
to and following the go-live in the USA, in May 2020, and in Australia, in September 2020.

The Board continues to focus on realising the benefits of ERP projects as they are now live. These benefits include that the
ERP automates, standardises and creates repeatable, joined up and ‘right first-time’ business processes. The go-lives drive
cost efficiencies, improve the interaction with suppliers and customers and benefit the employees that use it, so that Waterlogic
can provide customers with a simple, reliable and cohesive, ‘effortless’, customer experience. Importantly, it will now
significantly improve the consistency, quality, depth and breadth of data that will be accessible to business unit management
teams, functional heads and, ultimately, the Board. Key to this will be immediate access to the ‘cradie to the grave’, accurate,
operational and financial data, representing the life of every individual POU unit. .

In addition, the Board expects that in future business acquisitions' integration will become more efficient, with established
group wide processes, data models and cloud hosted infrastructure. The Group's systems’ development is also expected to
improve customer experience at newly acquired businesses and so also reduce customer churn in these businesses.

Financing facilities

In order to continue the Group's strategy of complementing organic growth with business acquisitions and to minimise financing
costs, the Board approved the incremental financing of $30.7 million of the existing SFA in March 2020 and another $104.2
million in October 2020. The first was used to clear down the drawn Revolving Credit Facility, and the second to clear down
the drawn Revolving Credit Facility and put cash on the balance sheet to fund future acquisition activity.

New Product Development

As set out in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section below, the Directors recognise that the Group's competitors could
successfully develop new technoliogies that may challenge some of Waterlogic's existing technologies. These could impact
on the Group’s competitive advantage and, therefore, the Board remains highly committed to investing in Research and
Development projects. The research and development initiatives put to the Board are driven by the commercial teams, who
are reacting to and anticipating the needs of both the customers and the markets that the Group operates in or wants to
access. These initiatives are then reviewed by the Product Development Committee and approved by the Board in the light
of strategic priorities, resource availability and overall cost.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Section 172 statement (continued)

European Distribution Centre

The Board decided to investigate and, if viable, implement the consolidation of all European warehouses into a central hub,
which would mostly be supplied from the China manufacturing operation. This would create a streamlined, scalable and
efficient European supply chain mechanism which would reduce both costs and inventory levels. The operation came into
effect from January 2021.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties whose outcome could impact on its financial performance,
operations, regulatory compliance or corporate reputation. Some of these are generic to any multinational commercial
enterprise and others are more specific to the Group. The key risk factors that the Directors consider potentially material in
nature are set out below, together with information about the mitigating actions in place.

Risk management process

Management of risk is an integral part of the day-to-day activities of the Group and, where reasonably possible, steps are
taken to mitigate known material risks. However, these steps can only reduce the likelihood of risk events occurring or the
impact on the Group should they occur. They do not provide absolute certainty over the mitigation or elimination of the risks
as many risk factors are wholly or partially outside the control of the Group.

Description

Acquisitions and integration
The Board intends to continue
acquiring businesses. Any
acquisition that cannot be
successfully integrated, or does
not provide the incremental
economic value expected at the
time of acquisition, could have a
negative effect on the Group's
performance. As the Group
expands there is a risk that its
infrastructure may not be
sufficiently robust to ensure that
operational efficiency is
maximised and economies of
scale are realised.

Technology, innovation and
intellectual property
Researching and developing new
products is complex, costly and
time-consuming.

There is a risk that competitors
may develop new technologies,
like Firewall, or innovative
applications of existing
technologies, that undermine the
Group's competitive advantage.

The Group could fail to recognise
intellectual property, fail to seek
appropriate security over rights to
intellectual property, or fait to
obtain security for reasons
outside the Group’s control. The
Group could breach other parties’
intellectual property rights.

Mitigation

Board approval is required prior
to any significant transaction and
appropriate financial, legal,
technical and other due diligence
reviews are carried out.

The Group has taken steps to
strengthen its post-acquisition
integration planning.

Targets are set for all newly
acquired businesses and
potential synergies are identified
and tracked.

The Group continues to invest in
research and development of
new technologies.

The Group relies on a
combination of patents, copyright,
trademarks, design registrations,
trade secrecy laws, confidentiality
procedures and contractuat
provisions to protect its
intellectual property rights.

Comprehensive searches are
carried out before any application
to register a patent or trademark
is lodged and competitors' new
product launches, trademarks
and domain names are monitored
to identify potential conflicts
between the Group's and other
parties' rights.
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Risk monitoring

The performance of acquired
businesses against defined
targets is closely monitored.

Post-acquisition reviews are
carried out to assess the extent
to which expectations set out in
the original Board proposals have
been realised.

The development of new
products and technologies is
closely monitored. Development
initiatives are driven from
commercial teams, are reviewed
by the Product Development
committee and committed in the
light of Group strategic priorities.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Description
Manufacturing

The Group's strategy is to
manufacture to order so as to
minimise finished goods
inventory held at the factories
and within thé supply chain.

Any disruption to manufacturing
operations and/or inbound or
outbound supply chains could
extend delivery lead times.
Disruption can also be caused by
political change or uncertainty,
which extends to the imposition
of tariff changes on cross border
supplies of goods. In addition,
external factors such as the
COVID-19 pandemic can have
an impact on the manufacturing
facilities ability to maintain supply
levels to the Group.

Labour costs in the PRC continue
to rise and price and availability
of raw materials and components
are subject to inherent
uncertainty. An appreciation of
the Chinese Renminbi against
the US Dollar could represent a
factor in the competitiveness of
the Group's manufacturing costs.

Product reputation and
product liability

Any factor or event that adversely
affects customers’ perception of
the quality and reliability of the
Group's products could affect its
ability to maintain or increase
revenue.

Mitigation

The Group employs a number of
measures including identifying
multiple suppliers, auditing
suppliers to ensure quality,
safeguarding its manufacturing
and logistics infrastructure
against disruption, maintaining
business interruption insurance
and holding inventory at
subsidiaries.

The Group has opened a new
manufacturing facility in Dallas
USA in 2020 which provides
additional manufacturing capacity
and flexibility for the Group. In
addition, it provides
complementary manufacturing
capacity if there were issues with
the supply chain or other matters
in China.

The recruitment of a Group Chief
Operating Officer, Dominic
Shorrocks, in 2020 has increased
the focus on managing supply
chain risk and stock management
within the Group.

The Group's products incorporate
a range of design and technical
features that reduce the risk of
contamination in the course of
normal use.

The Group operates rigorous
quality assurance and contro!
procedures both during
manufacturing and prior to
delivery/instaliation of its
products.

Recommended maintenance
procedures ensure cleanliness
and hygiene.

The Group also maintains public
and product liability insurance
against liabilities to third parties.
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Risk monitoring

Supplier quality and performance
is closely monitored. Materials
costs and labour productivity are
closely monitored.

Inventory levels at subsidiaries
are carefully monitored centrally
in order that potential shortages
around the Group can be
managed by transferring
inventory between subsidiaries.

Product quality is constantly
monitored through the Group's
review of supply chain partners,
production Quality Assurance
and Pre-delivery processes.



Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Description

Continuity of supply and
quality

The provision and gquality of
natural mineral water is essential
for the bottlled water business,
predominantly in the UK.

There is a risk that the Group
could fail to meet demand during
peak summer periods.

The Group is also exposed to
quality of supply risk.

Barriers to entry are low in the
bottled water market in the UK
and localised suppliers have the
potential to gain business if the
Group is unable to meet the
customers’ demands for quality
product.

Funding and liquidity

At 31 December 2020 the Group
had a $839.1 million banking
facility (2019: $649.8 million) of
which $724.1 million had been
drawn down (2019: $628.4
million).

There is a risk that the Group
could fail to fulfil its obligations as
they fall due.

The Group is also exposed to
interest rate risk.

Mitigation

The provision and quality of natural
mineral water is constantly
reviewed and maintained to ensure
that the Group can cope with
demand peaks over the summer
period.

Relationships with second-string
suppliers are maintained to further
strengthen the Group's ability to
ensure continuity of supply during
peak periods of demand.

The Group's policy is to purchase
from British Water Cooler
Association (‘BWCA") accredited
suppliers wherever possible.

Part of the rationale for acquiring
Kingshill Mineral Water Limited in
2019 was to secure supplementary
supply of bottled water.

Robust cash forecasting and
measurement and centralised cash
management procedures are in place.

Fixed rate caps have been contracted
to hedge the interest rates on the term
loans.

During 2020 the Board approved the

" incremental financing of $30.7 million

of the existing SFA in March 2020 and
another $104.2 million in October
2020. The first was used to clear down
the drawn Revolving Credit Facility,
and the second to clear down the

drawn Revolving Credit Facility and put

cash on the balance sheet to fund
future acquisition activity.

The Group maintains a multi-purpose
Revolving Credit Facility (“RCF"), with
$45.0 million undrawn at year end
2020.
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Risk monitoring

The provision and quality of
natural mineral water is
constantly reviewed and
maintained to ensure that
the Group can cope with
demand peaks over the
summer period.

Cash flow forecasts are monitored
weekly against actual
performance.
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Strategic Report (continueq)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Description

ERP Solution Roll out

During 2017 the Group embarked
on the development of an integrated
ERP solution, project Nexus. Nexus
ERP is designed to transform the
Group's operational efficiency and
the accuracy, breadth, depth and
strategic relevance of business
information within the Group. It also
enables a more cohesive customer
experience, as all functions
reference the same data.

The primary risk is that the ERP
solution does not meet these
objectives following initial
implementation in 2020.

There is also a risk that the ERP
project could overrun on
implementation deadlines or on cost
and a risk that the implementation
could cause undue business
disruption during or immediately
after the implementation date. The
ERP project is expected to generate
a positive impact on the Group's
profits and therefore there is a risk
that the anticipated benefits do not
achieve the expected levels.

Exchange rates

The Group buys and selis
materials and components,
products, goods and services
internationally and is exposed to
exchange rate risk on
transactions denominated in
currencies other than the US
Dollar, predominantly Euro,
Norwegian Kroner, Australian
Dollar and Pound Sterling.

The way in which the Group's
credit facility has been drawn
down also presents an Income
Statement and Balance Sheet
exposure to fluctuations in the
Euro and the Australian Dollar
exchange rate.

The financing loans advanced by
Castik Capital are denominated
in a non-functional currency
{Euros) for the Group and
therefore present an Income
Statement and Balance Sheet
exposure to movement in the
Euro.

Mitigation

The Directors appointed a
Transformation Director in 2019 to
manage the ERP development project
and the associated costs. During
2020, the Nexus teams established
further in-house capabilities, with a
number of experienced employees
moving into Nexus programme roles
and recruited new employees with
specific capabilities. These Group
managers and employees direct the
programme and work closely with an
established group of contractors.

The project is also overseen by a
Steering Committee, which includes
independent ERP implementation

Risk monitoring

ERP implementations took place in
the USA in May 2020 and in Australia
in September 2020. These
businesses successfully operated on
their new ERP systems from go-live
and the performance and output of
these systems is closely monitored
by local & Group management.

The progress and risk profile of the
ERP project is reviewed by the
Directors during the regular Board
Meetings.

advisers and meets regularly to provide

input to the work stream team leaders.

The project has a detailed annual cost
budget, which the Transformation
Director controls spend against and is
reviewed by the Steering Committee.

The Group seeks, wherever
possible, to ensure similar inflows
and outflows of cash in each of
these currencies through its

" normal operations, thereby

creating a natural hedge.

Foreign exchange exposures on
trading transactions are
monitored and forward contracts
are used when appropriate. From
August 2018, the Group began
entering into foreign currency
forward contracts (‘forwards’) to
sell USD and buy RMB. The
purpose of the forwards is to
hedge a portion of the Group's
exposure to RMB inventory
purchases.

Loans relating to subsidiaries
trading predominantly in
currencies other than US Doliars
have been taken out in the
appropriate foreign currency to
create a natural hedge.

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited | Annual report and accounts 2020

The Income Statement impact of
foreign exchange gains and
losses is monitored and reparted
on a monthly basis.



Strategic Report (continued)

Going concern basis

The Directors consider it applicable to prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis. in reaching this conclusion,
the Directors have considered the financial projections of the Group for the foreseeable future, which covers a period of at
least 12 months from the date of signing the Financial Statements

As the world starts to recover from the covid-19 crisis there is likely to be a continued but limited impact on the Groups finances.
Throughout 2020 the Group has proved the robust nature of its business model with its ability to manage cash and flex the
cost base as required while protecting the customer base.

The Directors have modelled the reasonably possible worst-case scenario which covers a period of at least 12 months from
the date of signing these financial statements. This model includes an overall decrease in revenue compared to the 2021
budget with only a limited reduction in costs and capital expenditure. This mode! has not included the ability to draw down on
the Groups RCF facility and nevertheless continues to show the Group will have significant cash reserves.

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set outin this Strategic Report. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
also described within the financial statements. In addition, note 34 of the financial statements includes the Group's financial
capital management objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives;
details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk.

At the year-end the Group had net debt of $1,082.6 million (2019: $928.1 million), of which $348.5 million was due to the
shareholder (2019: $294.7 million), with a committed and unutilised revolving credit facility of $45.0 million (2019: $21.4
million). Net liabilities were $267.5 million (2019: $141.4 million). None of the loan facilities drawn down by the group and
included in the net debt figure above are re-payable within the next 12 months. The Group had net current assets of $86.8
million at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: $10.5 million) including cash and cash equivalents of $84.1 million (31
December 2019: $23.5 million). The various bank loans held were subject to a covenant relating to leveraging. This was the
only covenant in place, and this was met during the period. Given the significant headroom the Group currently has on this
covenant, and the rental business model of the Group which drives considerable repeating and recurring revenue, it is
expected that the covenant will continue to be met for the foreseeable future. This is supported by the results of the reasonably
possible worst-case scenario set out above, in which the covenant is met at all relevant test dates.

Having reviewed the reasonably possible worst-case scenario forecasts for the coming year, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Therefore,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Brexit

Waterlogic's three manufacturing facilities operate outside the UK, in China, Australia and the USA. Waterlogic serves its
customers in each country around the world through local staff, including field service and customer support. Brexit only had
the potential to impact Waterlogic to the extent that supply of units and spare parts into the UK might be adversely impacted.
Therefore the Group built an incremental holding of units and spare parts in the UK as a contingency against Brexit related
supply chain challenges. As a result, the Group did not suffer any significant adverse impact from Brexit and, importantly, the
recurring revenue Rental and Service mode! delivered continuity of revenue and locally based staff were able to provide UK
customers with continuity of customer service.

Future prospects
The Group wilt manage the business conservatively through the COVID-19 pandemic, and subsequent periods, and will pursue
the strategies of growing the recurring rental base and achieving growth both organically and through strategic acquisitions.

Organic growth opportunities, which deliver significant ESG benefits to both our customers and more generally, include further
growing the core POU proposition, with opportunities to convert Bottled Water dispensers expected to increase post COVID-
19, capitalising on Firewall technology's proven anti-bacterial benefits and expanding other propositions, such as the HoReCa
offering. Acquisition based growth will include building greater density in existing markets and accelerating growth in new
markets.

Approval
This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

(L &—

Huw Jenkins
Group Chief Financial Officer
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their annuai report on the affairs of the Gfoup, together with the financial statements and auditor’s report,
for the year ended 31 December 2020. .

An indication of likely future developments in the business of the Group and an explanation of the going concern assertlon are
included in the Strategic Report.

Information about the use of financial instruments by Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
is given in notes 22 and 34 to the financial statements.

Dividends
The Board does not propose a dividend for the year (2019: $nil). The dividend policy continues to be reviewed periodically
by the Board.

Capital structure

In April 2020, a significant minority investment in Firewall Holding S.a.r.l. was acquired by new investors. The only asset of
Firewall Holding S.a.r.l. is a 100% interest in Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited. As such, this was in effect an acquisition of
a significant minority investment in Waterogic Group Holdings Limited. The investment was made by four strong institutional
investors: British Columbia Investment Management; Neuberger Berman; StepStone; and Skandia. This investment is further
testament to the strength of Waterlogic's businesses model, especially its resilience, considering the unprecedented economic
conditions that were prevailing. The investment strongly endorses the Waterlogic investment proposition and provides further
access to capital in support of Waterlogic's growth ambitions.

Details of the issued share capital of the Company are shown in note 27. The Company has one class of Ordinary Shares
which carry no right to fixed income. There is no limit on the number of shares that the Company can issue.

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares have been fully paid.

Research and development

The Group undertakes research and development as part of its strategy to strengthen its presence in the global market as a
leader in the water dispenser industry. The Group's POU development activities are predominantly undertaken by a dedicated
product development team based in China and its UTS development activities are undertaken by the dedicated product
development teams based in Australia and China. The amounts expensed and capitalised in relation to research and
development activity are shown in notes 7 and 16 respectively.

Directors
The Directors, who served during the year and to the date of signing, were as follows:

Jeremy Ben-David — Group Chief Executive Officer

Huw Jenkins — Group Chief Financial Officer

Mark Taylor — Group Chief Commercial Officer

Dominic Shorrocks — Group Chief Operating Officer Appointed 1 February' 2020

Directors’ indemnities
The Group has in place third party indemnity insurance for the benefit of the Officers and Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries. This insurance policy remains in force at the date of this report.

Acquisition of the Company's own shares
The Company did not purchase any of its own shares during the year and nor has it done so up to the date of this report.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the appticant
concerned. in the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Employee consuitation and engagement

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group. This is achieved
through formal and informal meetings, periodic e-mails and quarterly employee newsletters. During 2019 the UK businesses
had training on supporting Mental Health in the work-place and also received training on becoming Mental Health First Aiders.
The Group has also focussed on raising awareness and support of mental health issues as they can impact on employees at
key points in their lives. .

The interests of employees are taken into account by the Board, as set out in the Section 172 statement in the Strategic
Report.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Energy and Carbon consumption

During 2020 the UK businesses combined consumed 1,661 cubic tonnes of COz (2019: 2,772 cubic tonnes of COz2) as a result
of their commercial activities. This equates to an aggregate quantity of energy consumed of 446,195 KWh of electricity
(2019: 787,520 KWh) and 388,819 litres of diesel. The CO2 emissions in 2020 were 0.020 Kg per $1 of revenue in the UK
(2019: 0.031 Kg). '

Emissions of CO2during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

Scape* Tonnas Teonnes

Gas and LPG 1 106 240
Petrol and diesel 1 1,012 1,634
Total - Scope 1 1,118 1,874
Electricity 2 157 277
Total — Scope 2 ) 157 277
Air travel ‘ 3 386 621
Total - Scope 3 386 621
Total tonnes of CO? 1,661 2,772

'Scope 1 covers direct emissions from ownéd or controlled sources. Scope 2 covers Indirect emissions from the g on of purchased electricity, steam, heating and cooling consumed
by the reporting company. Scope 3 indudes all other indirect emissions that occur in the company’s value chain. .

The Group recognises the importance of its ESG strategies and continues to innovate with customers and partners around
the world. Unfortunately, 2020 saw a significant impact from the globat COVID-19 pandemic and, in March 2020, the Group
reacted with a 'Global COVID-18 Contingency’ plan. Wherever possible Waterlogic staff were encouraged to work from home
and, where necessary, places of work were made COVID-19 secure to protect the wellbeing and health of employees using
them. As a result, there was a dramatic reduction in both the Group's carbon footprint and the greenhouse gas emission levels
during 2020. There was a severe decline in road, air and rail travel and fuel usage was therefore low. Videoconferencing
increased significantly as offices temporarily closed down and employees worked effectively from home. Invoicing, receipts,
contracts/e-signature became overwheimingly electronic and printing and paper usage dropped significantly.

Also the impact of one UK customer switching to Waterogic ‘Planet’ cups saw Wates Construction saving 28,000 single-use
plastic cups from landfill each month. Waterlogic also continues to drive customer change to more ethically and responsibly
sourced water, including helping to eradicate 23.8 billion single-use plastic bottles with the installation of mains-fed dispensers.

Political contributions
The Group did not make any contributions to political organisations in the year (2019: $nil).

Financial risk management objectives
Details of financial isk management objectives are set out in note 34.

Diversity

The Board recognises the value of diversity both in its own membership and within the Group’s wider employee base. Whilst
the Board believes that the market sectors in which the Group operates are such that gender diversity in Board membership
would not, of itself, bring specific benefits or insights, as a matter of policy the Board believes that the search for new Board
candidates should be conducted, and, when required, appointments made, on merit, against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits that diversity, including gender diversity, could provide. Business units have in place appropriate policies
in relation to equal opportunities in the workplace. Appointments, rewards and advancement in the Group's wider employee
base are also based on merit. As a matter of principle, the Board does not accept discrimination against, or in favour of, any
individual or group of individuals. Diversity, as with other management policies, is under regular review.

Post balance sheet events
Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are contained in note 35 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:
« so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

« the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Deloitte LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as auditor. Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act
20086, the auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and Deloitte LLP will therefore continue in office.

Authorised for issue by the Board

Qo E—

Huw Jenkins 1 Grenfell Road
Group Chief Financial Officer Maidenhead
29 April 2021 Berkshire

SL6 1HN
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The group financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (*FRS
102").

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are salisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company
will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

+ properly select and apply accounting policies; )

s present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance; and

* make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concermn.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the

company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legis!ation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

¢ the financial statements of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (the ‘parent company') and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’)
give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of
the group’s loss for the year then ended;

o the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as issued.by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement; and

the related notes 1 to 38 and C1to C11.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law
and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as issued
by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's') Ethical Standard as
applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

* The impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets, with particular focus on
the Chilean, North American and French CGUs; and
¢ The recoverability of trade receivables in the US and the UK.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the group financial statements was $4.89m which was

determined on the basis of just under 4.0% of adjusted earnings before interest, depreciation,
tax and amortisation ('AEBITDA’).

Scoping We have performed full scope audit procedures on 10 key business units — UK, Australia,

USA, Germany, Australia, China, France, Norway, Sweden and Ireland. In addition, a further
5 holding and finance companies within the Group were subject to specified audit procedures
Ouir full scope and specified audit procedures covered 81% of revenue, 81% of adjusted
EBITDA and 94% of net liabilities.

Significant changes in We have changed the basis on which we have determined materiality in the current year to
our approach reflect the impact of COVID-19 on the profit of the group as well as the listing of the Group

during the year. For further details refer to section 6 of this report.

In addition, we have identified two new key audit matters relating to the recoverability of trade
receivables in the US and the UK and the impairment of goodwill and other acquired
intangible assets, with particular focus on the Chilean, North American and French CGUs.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

QOur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included:

L]

Obtaining an understanding of Management's forecasting process for the business;

Assessing the performance of the Group post year end up until the date of signing of the financial statements;
Assessing Management's forecast for the twelve month period from the date of signing and assessing the level of
liquidity and covenant headroom throughout the forecast going concem period;

Challenging and assessing the key assumptions in the forecasts, including future revenue growth and EBITDA
margin forecasts, for reasonableness by comparison against historic perfformance and performance in Q1 2021 to
date;

Checking the clerical accuracy of Management's forecast model;

Inspecting correspondence with the lenders to obtain an understanding of the current position in relation to the
group's financial covenants,

Recalculating the year-end covenant position and comparing this to the requirements per the facilities agreement;
Assessing Management's sensitivity analysis and break case scenario; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the going concern disclosures in the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether
or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. The impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets, with particular focus on the Chilean,
North American and French CGUs.

Key audit matter
description

Significant goodwill and other acquired intangible asset balances of $602.3m (2019:
$568.8m) have arisen on past business combinations. Management is required to assess the
carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and .
perform an impairment review under /AS 36 Impairment of Assets on an annual basis, and
when an indication of impairment exists. We consider the ongoing impact that the
coronavirus pandemic is having on the macro economic environment to be a significant
indicator of impaimment.

The consideration of the impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible asset balances
is an inherently judgmental area, which is susceptible to management bias, and therefore
increases the risk associated with the valuation of these assets. The key judgements, are as
follows:

« The method of determining the recoverable amount, IAS 36 requiring Management
to use the higher of the result given by a value in use (VIU) model based on future
cash flow forecasts or the fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCOD) for each CGU;

« Where a VIU model has been prepared, the most sensitive assumptions applied to
underlying cash flow forecasts supporting the impairment review, including short
term revenue growth rates, EBITDA margins, terminal growth rates and working
capital assumptions;

e The key assumptions in calculating the discount rate (WACC) applied to each CGU,
in particular, the risk free rate, the equity risk premium and the size premium; and

e In considering the FVLCOD, the methed in which this has been calculated with a
particutar focus on the judgements around the multiples applied.

We have further focussed our audit risk on 3 CGUs where the assessment of whether the
recoverable amount is greater than the carrying value was particularly sensitive, these were
Chile, North America and France.

Further details are disclosed in Note 15 of the financial statements.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

Our response to the key audit matter included:

Obtaining an understanding of the relevant controls over the impairment process;
Challenging management's key growth assumptions with reference to third party
data and assessment of historic forecasting accuracy;

« Obtaining an understanding of how COVID-19 has impacted the forecasts, and
assessing the reasonableness of management's key assumptions in the forecasts
including short term revenue growth rates, EBITDA margins, terminal growth rates
and working capital assumptions; ’

+ Challenging the discount rate and multiples applied against comparable companies
in the industry, with the support of our internal valuation specialists;

e Assessing the sensitivity analysis performed by Management;

e Performing our own sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used in the calculation;
and

e Assessing the appropriateness of the disclosure in the financial statements.

Key observations

We concur with management that no impairment is required to the carrying value of goodwill
and other acquired intangible assets as at 31 December 2020. We consider the disclosures in
the financial statements to be appropriate.
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)
5.2. Recoverability of trade receivables in the US and the UK

Key audit matter
description

At year-end, the Group held total trade receivable balances of $73.9m (2019: $70.6m) before
the recognition of the expected credit losses of $12.8m (2019: $5.6m). COVID-19 has
impacted trading across the world, with an increased risk of customer default recognised as a
result. We therefore consider that there is an increased level of risk associated with the
recoverability of trade debtors, specifically in relation to the process of establishing an IFRS 9
compliant provision policy in the UK and the USA, which combined make up $41.2m of the
total net trade receivables balance (2019: $21.6m). These markets in particular have seen
higher level of receivables ageing and increased levels of customer default, both historically
and following the COVID-19 pandemic.

In establishing the provision policy, there is an inherent judgement around the appropriateness
of key assumptions used in the calculation of the provision, including the recoverability
percentages applied to the trade receivables ageing buckets, the lifetime expected credit
outcomes for receivables, whether recoverability assumptions are reflective of current cash
collection rates and whether additional specific provisions should be made.

Management's accounting policy for financial assets, including trade receivables, is disclosed
in Note 3 to the financial statements.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

Our response to the key audit matter included:

s  Obtaining an understanding of the key processes and relevant controls around both
the cash collection processes and the establishment of provisioning percentages, ;

e Assessing Management's provisioning policy and challenging whether this reflects
the lifetime expected credit outcomes for receivables, specifically assessing
whether the recoverability assumptions are reflective of current cash collection rates
given the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic;

e Checking the accuracy and completeness of information within the aged debt
model;

e Checking the provision has been calculated in line with Management'’s policy
through testing the mechanical accuracy of the provision calculations;

* Agreeing the sample of invoices on the debtors ledger to subsequent cash receipt;

e  Assessing the completeness of forward looking factors taken into consideration
when determining the IFRS 9 specific accounts receivable provision; and

e Assessing the disclosures in the financial statements.

Key observations

We are satisfied that the assumptions applied in assessing the impairment of trade
receivables, including the impact of COVID-19, are reasonable and that the bad debt
provision has been properly calculated using appropriate relevant data and in accordance
with IFRS 9.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. . Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)

Group financial statements

Parent company financial statements

[ e~ ————

. $4.89m (2019: $4.45m)

Materiality $0.73m (2019: $0.74m)
,___;.__".____._‘.__M_,: -

Basis for 4.0% of adjusted EBITDA. 3.0% of net assets
determining (2019: 5.0% of adjusted EBITDA) (2019: 3.0% of net assets)

materiality
: Details of adjustments made and a reconciliation
between adjusted EBITDA and operating profit
has been set out in Note 7.

T T

Materiality has been determined based on

professional judgement with reference to the

adjusted EBITDA metric in order to set materiality
. at an appropriate level.

Rationale for the
benchmark
.applied

Net assets has been chosen as a benchmark as it
is considered the most relevant benchmark for
investors and is a key driver of shareholder value.

AEBITDA $126.6m

® AEBITDA

® Group materiality

—] $0.73m to $1.88m

\- reporting threshold

Group materiality
$4.89m

Combonent
materiality range

Audit Committee

$0.24m

. Lttt s e e

6.2.
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce

Performance materiality

the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and

undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements

Parent company financial statements

e

-Performance 70% of group materiality

70% of parent company materiality
materiality
Basis and We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in
rationale for aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial
determining statements as a whole.
performance - - . : . .
materiality In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:
a. our risk assessment, including our assessment of the group's overall control environment and the
impact of COVID-19 on the control environment; and
b. our past experience of the audit, which has indicated a low number of uncorrected misstatements
identified in prior periods and prior period errors identified in the current year.
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Independent auditor's report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)
6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of $244k, as well
as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit
741. Identification and scoping of components

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and its environment, including group-wide controls
and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the group level. Based on that assessment, we have performed fuli
scope audit procedures on 10 key business units — UK, Australia, USA, Germany, Australia, China, France, Norway,
Sweden and Ireland. In addition, a further 5 holding and finance companies within the Group were subject to specified audit
procedures where the extent of our testing was based on our assessment of the risks of material misstatement and of the
materiality of the group's operations within those entities.

These locations, incorporating those covered by specified audit procedures, account for 81% of the group's revenue, 81% of.

the group's adjusted EBITDA and 94% of net liabilities. They were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for
undertaking audit work to, address the risks of material misstatement identified above. Component materiality ranged from
$0.73m to $1.9m.

At the group level, we also tested the consolidation process, impairment of goodwill and long lived assets, accounting for
leases, accounting for acquisitions and related balances, borrowings and intercompany.

We also carried out analytical procedures to support our conclusion that there were no significant risks of material
misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances.

e B T
9 9%

“

Revenue @ Adjusted EBITDA Net liabilities 47%

81%
o Full audit scope s Full audit scope a Full audit scope
= Specified audit procedures = Specified audit procedures = Specified audit procedures
o Review at group level a Review at group level . B Review at group level
7.2. Working with other auditors

Working remotely, we exercised close supervision and oversight of our component audit teams through the performance of
the following procedures:

« Sent detailed instructions to all component audit teams outlining the specified procedures above;

e All component teams were included in team briefings, ptanning meetings and component risk assessments;

* We remotely reviewed supporting working papers prepared by components and related deliverables submitted to
us; and

¢ Close calls were held to discuss matters raised.

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of oversight that has been designed so that the Senior Statutory
Auditor and/or a senior member of the group audit team reviews overseas components selected by the Senior Statutory
Auditor based on his judgement. In the current year, we could not visit any overseas locations due to the current travel
restrictions as a result of the COVID19 pandemic. In 2019 we visited two overseas locations being, the US and Germany in
addition to the UK business unit. Whilst we were unable to visit this year, we were involved in the work our components and
reviewed the audit files of our largest components, being the UK, Australia, Germany, China and Norway. Further, we
performed the audit of US component from the UK. Every year, regardless of whether we have visited or not, we include the
component audit partner and other senior members of the component audit team in our team brlef ing, discuss their nsk
assessment and review documentation of the findings from their work.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)

8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual repont, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compiiance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

¢ the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the
group’s remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;
e results of our enquiries of management and the audit committee about their own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities;
* any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the group’s documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to:
o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances
of non-compliance; :
o detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud;
o the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;
e the matters discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant
internal specialists, including tax, valuations, and IT specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered that there are no opportunities and incentives within the organisation for
fraud and identified the greatest potential for fraud in the impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets and
recoverability of trade receivables in the US and the UK. In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to
perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, focusing on
provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures
the financial statements. The key taws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act and
tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

11.2 Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified the impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible asset and

in

Recoverability of trade receivables in the US and the UK as key audit matters related to the potential risk of fraud. The key

audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we
performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

* enquiring of management, the audit committee and both in-house and external legal counset concerning actual and

potential litigation and claims;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

* reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance;

e in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are

indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual

or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members

including internal specialists and significant component audit teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appllcable legal requirements.

course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

[ We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

13.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration

have not been made.

[ We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (continued)
14. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Holon &y&o\gz

Helen Burridge (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

29 Aprit 2021
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31 December

2019
2020 Restated®
Note $'000 $'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 5 367,955 363,169
Cost of sales (160,562)  (158,360)
Gross profit 207,393 204,809
Administrative expenses (215,923) (205,452)
Distribution expenses (385) (471)
Marketing expenses (4,729) (7,054)
Other gains and losses 8 (42,047) 26,398
Operating (loss) / profit 7 (55,691) 18,230
Adjustment for the effect of:
Corporate reorganisation costs 7 17,822 14,060
Acquisition and integration related costs 7 7,851 6,916
Gain recorded cn bargain purchase 7 - (1,096)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 7 35,930 32,818
COVID-18 related costs 7 3,715 -
Group ERP implementation costs 7 11,362 11,108
Losses/(gains) on foreign exchange movements 7 41,548 (24,883)
Adjusted operating profit 62,537 57,153
Finance income 9 63 1
Finance costs 10 (62,090) (47,585)
Loss before tax (117,718) (29,244)
Income tax charge 13 (386) (566)
Loss for the year 7 (118,104) (29,810)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company (118,104) (29,810)
(118,104) (29,810)
* 560 nole 37.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31 December

2019
2020 Restated"
Note $'000 $000
Loss for the year 7 (118,104) {29,810) -
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Cash flow hedges: gains/(losses) arising during the period 34 802 (290)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (11,968) (13,426)
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified (173) ' 83
Other comprehensive expense for the year (11,339) . (13.633)
Total combrehensive expense for the year (129,443) (43,443)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
Owners of the Company (129,443) (43,443)
(129,443) (43,443)
* see note 37.
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note $000 $000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 324,333 302,521
Other intangible assets 16 333,215 327,861
Property, plant and equipment 17 149,648 140,073
Right-of-use assets 17 40,512 40,445
Deferred tax asset 23 1,994 -
Derivative financial instruments 22,34 - 2
Total non-current assets 849,702 810,902
Current assets
Inventories 19 40,968 42,922
Trade and other receivables 20 73,789 77,794
Contract costs 20 3,663 2,801
Derivative financial instruments 22,34 434 -
Cash and cash equivalents 31 84,093 23,485
Total current assets 202,947 147,002
Total assets 1,052,649 957,904
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share Eapital 27 61,760 58,431
Translation reserve 28 1,905 13,873
Hedging reserve 28 325 (304)
Other reserves 28 152 152
Retained earnings 29  (331,682) (213,578)
Equity attributable to Shareholders (267,540) (141,426)
Total equity (267,540) (141,426)
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Consolidated balance sheet (continuea)
as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note $000 $000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES continued
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings:
— bank and other borrowings 21 1,123,897 893,224
- lease liabilities 21,24 30,031 29,256
Total borrowings 1,153,928 922,480
Deferred tax liability 23 44,319 39,438
Provisions 26 1,897 919
Deferred consideration 30 3.925 -
Other long-term obligations - 9 8
Total non-current liabilities 1,204,078 962,845
Current liabilities )
Trade and other payables 25 67,276 69,532
Borrowings:
— bank and other borrowings 21 v 367 18,240
— lease liabilities 21,24 12,388 10,894
Total borrowings 12,755 29,134
Current tax liabilities 5,114 6,246
Provisions 26 2,303 2,748
Deferred revenue 26,548 25,588
Derivative financial instruments 22,34 - 171
Deferred consideration 2,115 3,066
Total current liabilities 116,111 136,485
Total liabilities 1,320,189 1,099,330
Total equity and liabilities 1,052,649 957,904

The consolidated Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 29 April 2021

and were signed on its behalf by:

1 N e

Huw Jenkins
Group Chief Financial Officer

Company number 09297208
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Transiation Hedging Other Retained
capital reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
. $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 January 2019 58,431 27,299 (97) 152  (183,768) (97.983)
Loss for the year - restated” - - - - (29,810) (29,810)
Other comprehensive expense - restated” - (13,426) (207) - - (13,633)
Total comprehensive expense - restated* - (13,426) (207) - (29,810) (43,443)
Balance at 1 January 2020 - restated" 58,431 13,873 (304) 152  (213,578) (141,426)
Loss for the year - - - - (118,104) (118,104)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - (11,968) 629 - - (11,339)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - (11,968) 629 - (118,104) (129,443)
Shares issued in the year 3,329 - - - - 3,329
Balance at 31 December 2020 61,760 1,905 325 152  (331,682) (267,540)
* see note 37.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31 December

2019
2020 Restated"
Note $'000 $'000
Loss after tax for the year (118,104) (29,810)
Adjustments:
- depreciation and amortisation 99,010 85,424
- income tax charge 13 386 566
— net interest expense and changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments 62,027 47,474
— profit on disposal of non-current assets (130) (154)
— gain on bargain purchase - (1,096)
— contingent consideration adjustments 34 (168)
- foreign exchange movements 8 41,548 (24,883)
Adjusted operating cash flow before working capital movements 84,771 77,353
Net effect of working capital movemeﬁts 31 5,963 (3,071)
Cash flow before purchase of rental assets, interest and tax 90,734 74,282
Purchases of rental assets (40,502) (50,343)
Proceeds on disposal of rental assets 788 726
Interest paid on leased assets (2,375) (1,759)
Other interest paid (27,865) (23,237)
Tax paid (4,587) (3.155)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 16,193 (3,486)
Investing activities
Interest received 62 83
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,938 1,306
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (6,109) (7,948)
Purchases of intangible assets (17,244) (20,698)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (19,971)  (109,708)
Deferred consideration paid (841) (286)
Net cash used in investing activities (41,165) (137,251)
Financing activities )
Proceeds from the issue of new shares (net of costs) 27 - -
New bank loans and other borrowings raised 145,828 152,628
Repayment of bank loans and other financing (47,476) (24,092)
Repayment of lease liabilities (13,961) (12,008)
Payment of derivative financial instruments (68) 87
Net cash from financing activities 84,323 116,615
Translation differences 1,257 1,049
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 60,608 (23,073)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,485 46,558
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 31 84,093 23,485
* see note 37.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

1. General information

The Group operates as a vertically integrated business engaged in the design, manufacture, distribution, servicing and
sale of POU water machines and water cooling and filtration equipment (including bottied water) in worldwide markets.
The Group also engages in the distribution, servicing and sale of coffee equipment in certain markets.

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England and Wales under registration number
09297208. The address of its registered office is 1 Grenfell Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, SL6 1HN.

The consolidated Financial Statements present the financial record of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Companies in the consolidated financial information
The subsidiary undertakings included within the Financial Statements are set out in note 18.

2. Outlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended)

New and revised [FRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS
Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

e IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

« |FRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

e Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

e Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

e Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

¢ Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

e  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
international Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 16 Leases, and IAS 41 Agriculture

* Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods, except as noted below:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of
control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate
or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the Board; however, earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of financial
position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed
about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty
of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Outlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They
also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated
references (published together with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

Amendments to IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales
proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning properly'. IAS 16 now specifies this as
assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production
or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements shall disclose the amounts of
proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities,
and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained eamings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.
Amendments to IAS 37 — Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour
or materiais) and an aliocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall
recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 '

The Annual Improvements include amendments to four Standards.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent in respect
of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in
IFRS 1:D16(a) can now also elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying
amount that would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to
IFRS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in
which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption
in IFRS 1:D16(a).

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Outlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended) (continued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test to assess whether to derecognise a financial Iiébility, an entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges that occur on or after the date the entity first applies
the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.
IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

" As the amendment to IFRS 16 only regards an illustrative example, no effective date is stated.

Other standards not yet effective

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

3. Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in the Financial Statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB. The Financial
Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation
of certain financial instruments that are measured and revalued at amounts or fair values at the end of each financial reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Adoption of new and amended accounting standards
The group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2020:

o Amendment to IFRS 16 Impact of the initial application of COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
« Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
e Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

Impact of the initial application of COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) that provides practical relief to
lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical
expedient to IFRS 16. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID19-related rent
concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19-related rent concession the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change
were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

b) Any reduction in lease payments affects anly payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021 (a rent concession meets
this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2021 and increased lease payments that extend
beyond 30 June 2021); and

¢) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

In the current financial year, the Group has applied the amendment to IFRS 16 (as issued by the IASB in May 2020) in advance
of its effective date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Adoption of new and amended accounting standards (continued)

Impact on accounting for changes in lease payments applying the exemption

The Group has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent concessions that meet the conditions in IFRS 16:46B,
and has not restated prior period figures.

The Directors consider that the total value of rent concessions from which the Grm)p has benefited during the year is immaterial
in the context of these financial statements. Accordingly, no additional disclosure in relation to these concessions is included
in the financial statements.

Impact of the initial application of other new and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the below amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations issued by the Board
that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The Group has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards for the first time in the current year. The amendments include consequential amendments to affected Standards so
that they refer to the new Framework. Not all amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to references
to and quotes from the Framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only
updated to indicate which version of the Framework they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in
2001, the IASB Framewaork of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the Standard have
not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments make the
definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS
Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring' material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new
definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to
influence'. The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of materiai in IAS 1. in addition,
the IASB amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a definition of ‘material’ or refer to the term
‘material’ to ensure consistency.

3. Significant accounting policies

Fair value definition

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated Financial Statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree

to which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement

in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities; .

+ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Going concern

The Group's business activities and position in the market are described in the Strategic Report. The Directors believe that
the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertainties within the global economy.
Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the Financial Statements on a going concem basis. Further detail
is contained in the Strategic Report on pages 1to 9.

Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements incorporate the results of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2020.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired during the year to 31 December 2020 are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. Acquisition costs are recognised directly in the Income Statement as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired,
including intangible assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination, are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
Income Statement for the period.

Where applicable the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, measured at its acquisition date fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted against the cost of acquisition. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The accounting for all subsequent changes in fair value of contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is re-measured at subsequent balance sheet dates in accordance with IAS 39 or IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in the
Income Statement.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments relfated to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share based payment awards are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share Based Payment; and

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

With effect from 1 January 2019 the Group has adopted the revised definition of a business set out in ‘Definition of a business
(Amendments to IFRS 3).
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Goodwill ’

Goodwil! arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the “acquisition
date”). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of
the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

if, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in the income statement as a
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units (“CGUs") expected to benefit from synergies arising from the
combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been attributed under IFRS 3 Business Combinations are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the CGU. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in determining profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales taxes, discounts and after eliminating intra-group sales.

The Group recagnises revenue from the following major sources:

- Rental of POU water machines, UTS and bottled water coolers (“water dispensers”);
- Service of POU water dispensers;

- Direct and indirect sale of water dispensers;

- Direct and indirect sale of rental contracts; and

- Direct and indirect sale of consumables.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and
is recognised when control of a good or service is transferred to a customer. Revenue recognised in the Income Statement
but not yet invoiced is held on the balance sheet within “Trade and other receivables”. Revenue invoiced but not yet recognised
in the Income Statement is held on the balance sheet within “Deferred revenue”.

Combined rental and service contracts

The Group has in place a number of contracts with customers that cover both the rental of water dispensers and the servicing
and maintenance of those water dispensers. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation to reflect the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled to, in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customer. The Group allocates combined rental and service income to the separate rental and service categories based on a
percentage allocation method, which is calculated for each business unit. The percentage allocation, which is recalculated
periodically, is based on the transaction price being allocated to each performance obligation in proportion to its stand-alone

selling price.
Rental of water dispensers

Rental income is made up of revenue from the supply of goods where the Group is lessor in an operating lease and is
recognised over time, with the transaction price allocated to this service released on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease. Included in the transaction price for the rental of water dispensers, in some confracts, is the installation of those
dispensers. The rental and installation elements of the contract are considered to be one deliverable, as they are highly
interrelated, and therefore there is no allocation of a portion of the transaction price to installation.

Service of water dispensers

Sales of services are recognised proportionally over the duration of the service period, provided a right to consideration has
been established.

Direct and indirect sales of water dispensers

Sales of water dispensers are either “direct” to end-user customers or “indirect” to wholesale distributors. Revenue from the
supply of goods is recognised once control of the goods has been transferred to the customer, being when the goods have
been delivered to a customer site or in the case of indirect sales, when the goods have been delivered to the wholesale
distributor.

Included in the transaction price for the direct sale of water dispensers, in some contracts, is the installation of those
dispensers. The installation is considered to be a distinct service as it is available for customers from other providers in the
market. A portion of the transaction price is therefore allocated to installation services based on the stand-alone selling price
of those services. Revenue for installation is recognised once control of the service has been transferred to the customer,
being at the time the water dispenser is installed at a customer site.
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Customer rebates

Contracts involving the sale of goods that result in rebates or the supply of POU water dispensers free of charge to qualifying
customers (usually determined by volume of sales in a given period) are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and the
award of rebates or free issues earned and granted. The consideration allocated to provision for rebates is measured by
reference to their fair value — the amount for which the eamed credits could be sold separately. Such consideration is not
recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction but is deferred and recognised as revenue only when the
Group's obligations have been fulfilled and the actual value of any rebate or free issues determined.

Direct and indirect sale of rental contracts

The Group will occasionally sell the rights under a rental contract together with the related water dispensers and/or coffee
dispensers to a third party finance house. Where contro! of the asset passes to the third party this is accounted for as a “direct”

sale of goods. Where the Group retains a significant interest in the underlying asset the sale proceeds are recognised as -

borrowings and the Group continues to recognise the gross revenues under the rental contract as they are eamed. The
arrangements have been made both with and without recourse.

Direct and indirect sale of consumables

The Group sells a range of consumables, including bottled water, CO2 and re-usable bottles to complement its water
dispensers. Revenue generated by these consumables is recognised when control of the goods passes to the customer, being
when the good is delivered to a customer site. Where consumables are included as part of a rental or sale contract the
consumables are considered to be a distinct good as they are regularly supplied by the Group to customers on a stand-alone
basis and are available for customers from other providers in the market. A portion of the transaction price is therefore allocated
to consumables sales based on the stand-alone selling price of those goods.

Late fees

Where a customer does not pay outstanding amounts in accordance with the contracted terms of trade the Group may levy
late fees. Late fees are recognised within income as they arise. :

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Income Statement when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease (except where immaterial) are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Commissions on new contracts are capitalised
and depreciated over one and a half times the initial lease term.

Rental agreements run for a minimum period of twelve months and typically for three to five years. Some rental agreements
have no fixed end date and may be cancelled by either party subject to a minimum notice period or early termination penalty.
The average useful economic life for a POU water device is approximately four to ten years whilst refurbishment can extend
the life of some devices to eleven years or more. For this reason existing rental agreements are not judged to transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets worth less than $5,000
{such as personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

« Fixed lease payments less any lease incentives receivable;

« The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

« Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.
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Leases (continued)

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The lease fiability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using 1he effective interest
method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

e the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rate is used); or

¢ a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the

" lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under |AS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in
the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation
starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented within a separate captlon in the consclidated balance sheet, with additional information
disclosed in note 17.

The Group applies |AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment' policy.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease
and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this practical expedient. For
contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Foreign currencies

The individual Financial Statements of each subsidiary are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates (its functional currency). Following the acquisition of the Waterlogic Group in 2015 the US Dollar became the
predominant functional currency of the Group and therefore the presentation currency for the Consolidated Financial
Statements is the US Dollar.

In preparing the Financial Statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise except for:

« exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below under financial
instruments/hedge accounting); and

¢ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to the income statement on disposal or partial disposal
of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting the Financial Statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowing costs

The Group has incurred no borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs incurred in relation to refinancing are capitalised and amortised to the income statement over the term of the
loan. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated before investment or finance income and finance costs.
Adjusted profitability measures

The Directors use adjusted profitability measures to judge the profitability of the Group in order to provide them with a
consistent basis of comparison of the Group's results on a year-on-year basis, and to provide the reader of the accounts with
a fuller understanding of the financial performance of the Group. Adjusting items presented on the face of the Consolidated
Income Statement are considered to be those that are one-off in nature, out of the normal operating activities of the Group or
otherwise presented to provide the reader of the accounts with a fuller understanding of the financial performance of the Group.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Group’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Government grants and assistance

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Furlough grant income has been shown net against the related employee expense. Note 11 provides further
information on how.the group accounts for government grants.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initia!l recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are only recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries where the

Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. :
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Taxation {continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settied or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred tax is also deait with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Tangible and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less residual value over their useful lives, using the
straight line methad, on the following bases:

POU water dispensers on rental 4-10 years
Bottled water dispensers 4-10 years
Plant and machinery 3-10 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years
Property 20 - 30 years
Leasehold improvements 3-10 years
Rental commissions 2-8 years

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise
a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement on the transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group has no class of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Intangible assets — useful economic lives

Amortisation is provided for intangible assets other than goodwill and certain other specific intangible assets so as to write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over their useful lives, using a straight-line method, on the following bases:

Customer relationships 5-15 years
Development costs 4-10 years
Brand names, trademarks and patents 1-10 years
Software 3-5 years
ERP 10 years
Re-acquired rights 5-15 years
Other intangible assets 1-10 years

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development of new and enhanced water dispenser, water
purification devices or related consumable items is recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

« an asset is created that can be identified (such as product designs and new processes);
o itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
o the costs of developing this asset can be measured reliably.

Intemally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, with a presumption that this
is no more than ten years. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Purchased patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives where there is an expiry date.

Purchased customer lists and rental contracts (customer relationships)

Customer lists and rental contracts are measured initially at the purchase cost attributed to them when the asset is bought. In
the absence of an external market for the buying and selling of these intangible assets, the valuation is normally based on a
discounted cash flow approach with assumptions made for customer attrition rates, growth, contributory asset charges, asset
specific discount rates, useful economic life and an estimate of tax amortisation benefits arising from the recognition of these
intangibles. For all significant acquisitions these valuations have been prepared by independent valuatlion firms.

Other purchased intangibles

On the acquisition of a trading business, the Group undertakes an evaluation of the business to identify the existence of any
intangible assets in accordance with IFRS 3 (2008). The classes of intangible assets that are most commonly identified include
brand names, non-compete agreements with key personnel and the existence of a skilled and knowledgeable workforce. With
the exception of the workforce, which is allocated to goodwill, all other acquired intangibles are recognised under brand names,
trademarks, customer relationships, patents, re-acquired rights and other intangible assets (note 16). For all significant
acquisitions these valuations have been prepared by independent valuation firms.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At the balance sheet date, the Group reviewed the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows
that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of: (i) fair value less costs to sell; and (ii) value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash fiows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the extent that the revaluation balance is greater than the impairment loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years for the asset (or CGU). A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using either the first-in-first-out method or, for fast moving items, the average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.
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Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

All financial assets are nommally recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair
value through profit and loss, which are initially measured at fair value. On de-recognition, however, where a specific
transaction is entered into with a counterparty that is judged to carry a high credit or liquidity risk, then the Directors may
determine that de-recognition of the financial asset shall be based on settlement date rather than trade date, with any realised
gain or loss taken to the-income statement on date of settlement.

Financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be classified and measured subsequently at amortised
cost, fair value through OCI| (‘FVTOCI') or fair value through profit and loss ((FVTPL’) on the basis of the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

« debtinstruments that are held within a business mode! whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost;

o debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at FVTOCI; and

« all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at FVTPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of
a financial asset:

« the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination in
other comprehensive income; and

‘o the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as

measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and amounts paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. ’

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Classes of financial asset
Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the assetis held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
« the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified
at amortised cost. Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets at FVTOC/

Financial assets at FVTOCI are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 34.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the
income statement. The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item in the income statement. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 34.
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. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. In
accordance with IFRS 9 impairment of financial assets is based on an expected credit loss ('ECL’) model. The ECL model
requires the Group to account for ECLs and changes in those ECLs at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the financial assets. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected, IFRS 9 also requires current and future events to be considered when making an impairment
assessment.

IFRS 9 requires the Group to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime ECLs if
the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument is a
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition (except for a
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset), the Group is required to measure the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-months ECL. [FRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables in certain circumstances.

For listed and unlisted equity investments measured at fair value, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, including finance lease receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:
« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to the measurement of ECLs which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. The ECL on these trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix for collective assessment based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, to the extent that
these are expected to have an effect on recovery of trade receivables.

To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics where relevant, and
the days past due. The ECL percentage rates of default applied to trade receivables grouped by days past due are based on
the payment profiles of sales over a selected period and the corresponding historical default (non-payment which resulted in
the debt being written off) experienced in relation to these sales. The percentage rates of default are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables where
applicable.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying
- amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
the income statement.

De-recognition of financial assets .

The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI! is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOC! is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting al! of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound instruments
The Group has issued no compound instruments (convertible bonds) requiring separate classification as financial liabilities
and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are

subsequently measured at the higher of:

« the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies set out above.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities at FVTPL" or "other financial liabilities”.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is elther held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial-liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

« the financial iability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy and information about the grouping is provided intemally on that basis; or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives and IFRS 8 Financial Instruments perrmts the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the
income statement. The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the “other gains and losses" line item in the income statement. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 34.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis. .

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group is able to enter into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and interest rate caps. Further details of
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 34.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in the Income Statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges
of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges
of net investments in foreign operations.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the instrument is more than twelve months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within twelve months.
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the hybrid
instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more than twelve months and is not expected to be realised or settled
within twelve months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between
the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

« there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;
- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship; and

« the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk
management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the
hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward contract (i.e. including the forward elements) as the hedging
instrument for all of its hedging relationships involving forward contracts.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time value of the option.
The changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in other comprehensive income. If the
hedged item is transaction-related, the time value is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
If the hedged item is time-period related, then the amount accumulated in the OCl is reclassified to profit or loss on a rational
basis — the Group applies a weighted average basis. Those reclassified amounts are recagnised in profit or loss in the same
line as the hedged item. If the hedged item is a non-financial item, then the amount accumulated in the OCl is removed directly
from equity and included in the initial carrying amount of the recognised non-financial item. Furthermore, if the Group expects
that some or all of the loss accumulated in cost of hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash flow hedge (continued)

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line of the income statement as the ineffective hedged
costs. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the gains and losses previously accumaulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect other comprehensive
income. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not
be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying
criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast
transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in cash flow
hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to proﬁt or loss.

Notes 22 and 34 set out details of the fair values of any derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Share based incentives
Equity-settled share based incentives to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value excludes the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based incentives is expensed on a straight line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the income
statement such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. ’

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legis!ation are recognised at the date of sale
of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are presented separately below), that
the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Leases — the Group as lessor

Rental agreements run for a minimum period of twelve months and typically for three to five years. This is substantially less
than the average useful economic life for a POU device. For this reason all existing rental agreements are not judged to
transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. Consequently they are accounted for as operating
leases.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill (note 15)

The Directors review the carrying value of the Group’s goodwill balances at least annually. The uncertain impact of Covid-19
on the economy and future cash generating unit or group of cash generating units ({CGU’) cash flows could give a risk of a
material change in the valuation of goodwill in future periods. Therefore, attention will continue to be paid by the Directors to
the possible impacts on CGU cashflows as the global economy recovers from the pandemic.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use or fair value less cost of disposal of the
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires an entity to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present vaiue. The fair value less cost of
disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, less the costs of disposal. Further details are given in note 15, including details of CGUs where a reasonably possible
change could cause an impairment. ’

Calculation of ECL (note 20)

The Directors undertake a review of all new customers and a periodic review of existing customers to determine whether
specific risks of default exist. Beyond identification of specific risks, the Directors undertake periodic reviews into the calculation
of ECL to ensure historic, current and forward-looking information continues to provide a basis for impaimment assessment.
This review includes analysing data related to the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the risk profile of the Group's
customers. This will ensure that provision levels remain at a.level commensurate with the perceived level of risk as it
develops. The Directors also monitor collection processes to ensure that they remain one of the highest priorities for the
Waterlogic business units. Counterparty risk is mitigated in respect of rental customers as the rentals are collected in advance.
‘Indications of default can be identified early and recourse action taken to recover overdue rentals or repossess equipment
provided under the rental agreement. Further details are provided in note 20.
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5. Revenue from contracts with customers

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

$'000 $000
Continuing operations .
Direct revenue. 39,796 44,406
Indirect revenue : 35,724 45,294
Rental income 155,666 140,075
Service income 89,282 74,789
Consumables revenue ' 33,505 46,224
Other revenue 13,982 12,381
Total revenue . 367,955 363,169

Direct revenue represents the value of sales made directly to customers. indirect revenue represents sales made through
the Group's dealer network. Other revenue includes administration and freight fees charged to customers and other
miscellaneous income.

A geographical analysis of revenue by customer location is as follows:
Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

$'000 $°000
Continuing operations
UK and mainland Europe 182,057 183,072
Scandinavia 43,876 46,529
USA and Canada 86,475 79,813
Australia 49,953 51,749
Rest of the world 5,594 2,006
Total revenue 367,955 363,169

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time, analysed as follows:
. Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Revenue recognised:
Over time ) 244,948 214,864
At a point in time ' 123,007 148,305
Total revenue 367,955 363,169

Rental commissions

Management considers that incremental commission fees paid to employees as a result of obtaining operating leases relating
to rental income are recoverable. The Group has therefore capitalised them within plant, property and equipment in the
amount of $18,457,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: $14,112,000). Capitalised commission fees are amortised when the
related revenues are recognised. In 2020, the amount of amortisation was $3,085,000 (2019: $2,302,000) and there was no
impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalised. Further details of movements in the carmrying value of capitalised contract
costs are shown in note 17. '
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6. Auditor’s fees
The analysis of the auditor’s fees is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Audit services and audit related services
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s annual
accounts 535 380
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 914 766
Total audit fees" 1,449 1,146
Other services
Other taxation services:
Taxation complia_nce services 334 278
Other taxation advisory services 588 1,554
Other non-audit services 40 T 172
Total non-audit services 962 2,004
Total 2,411 3,150

No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

7. Loss for the year
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
Note $'000 $'000
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 8 41,548 (24,883)
Research and development costs 1,262 1,442
Depreciation of property, ptant and equiprhent 17 44,796 38,263
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 13,646 10,977
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 {130) (154)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 16 35,930 32,818
Amortisation of other intangibles 16 4,638 3.366
Gain recorded on bargain purchase - (1,096)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 47,315 54,310
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 204 60
Reversal of write downs of inventories recognised as a credit (30) (57)
Staff costs:
— corporate reorganisation 3,492 2,027
— other ' 134,369 140,197
Acquisition and integration related costs 7,710 6,916
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables 20 9,685 3,453
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables 20 (699) (342)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 10 277 221
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7. Loss for the year (continued)

Adjusted profitability measures

The Directors use adjusted profitability measures to judge the profitability of the Group in order to provide them with a basis
of comparison of the Group's results on a year-on-year basis. Adjusting items are considered to be those that are one-off in
nature, out of the normal operating activities of the Group or otherwise presented to provide the reader of the accounts with a
fuller understanding of the financial performance of the Group. During the years under review, “Adjusted Measures” include
adjusted operating profit and adjusted EBITDA.

The following items have been taken into account when calculating adjusted items:

Corporate reorganisation costs
» Costs associated with termination of employment resulting from:
+ relocation and/or redundancy of roles following strategic restructuring activities,

- the hiring of replacements or the cost of filling new positions and the short-term incremental cost of transitioning
to new roles following a fundamental restructure of a business or department; and

+ termination payments to Executive Directors of the Group;

+ Significant costs associated with the restructuring, re-organising, liquidating, merging, incorporation and disposal of
legal entities and joint ventures, including the associated tax, legal and financial advice costs;

+ Non-recurring costs associated with the restructuring of the Group's tax operating and funding model; and

- Non-capitalisable costs associated with the relocation of existing, or the establishing of new, substantial and
significant manufacturing, warehousing, assembly or office facilities. Costs can include the cost impact of suboptimal
factory performance leading up to full production.

Acaquisition and integration related costs

« Costs associated with acquisitions, including transaction costs and fair value adjustments on contingent
consideration and any non-capitalised deferred consideration payable to any shareholder post-acquisition; and

« Significant costs associated with the post-acquisition integration of companies and businesses, including
restructuring undertaken as a result of the acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses by the Group.

Gain recorded on bargain purchase

- Gain on acquisition of entities where the fair value of net assets acquired exceeds the fair value of consideration
paid. :

Amortisation of acquired intangibles

« Amortisation charge for the period relating to intangibles acquired with previously purchased subsidiaries (see note
16).

COVID-19 related costs

.« Non-operating employment costs related to employees that were on furlough and not providing services to the Group

and the costs of redundancies resulting from the pandemic (including associated legal costs).

Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangibles
« Impairment charge following the Group's annual goodwill and acquired intangibles impairment test.

Group ERP implementation costs

- Costs associated with the implementation of a Group-wide ERP solution including data cleansing, data migration,
training and other costs.

‘Foreign exchange gains and losses

« Impact of retranslation of balances held in non-functiona!l currency by subsidiary entities. This removes the
disproportional financial impact that the retranslation of balances held in non-functional currency can have on the
financial performance of the business.
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7. Loss for the year (continued)

Year ended 31 December

2019
2020 Restated*®
. ) $'000 $000
Operating (loss)/profit ] (55,691) 18,230
Add depreciation, amortisation and impairment 99,989 86,104
EBITDA** 44,298 104,334
Adjusting items: )
— corporate reorganisation costs** 17,822 14,060
— acquisition and integration related costs** 7,851 6,916
— gain recorded on bargain purchase** - (1,096)
— amortisation of acquired intangibles . 35,930 32,818
— COVID-19 related costs** 3,715 -
— Group ERP implementation costs** 11,362 11,108
- Losses/(gains) on foreign exchange movements™ 41,548 (24,883)
Total adjusting items 118,228 38,923
Adjusted operating profit 62,537 57,153
Adjusted EBITDA*™ 126,596 110,439
* see note 37.
* items included in ing adjusted EBITDA
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8. Other gains and losses

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

$000 - $'000

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 130 154
(Losses)/gains on foreign exchange movements (41,548) 24,883
Gain recorded on bargain purchase - 1,086
Other (losses)/gains (629) 265
(42,047) 26,398

No other gains or losses have been recognised in respect of loans or on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

9, Finance income

Year ended 31 December

2020 2018

$'000 $'000

Bank deposit interest 36 27
Other finance income 27 84
63 111

10. Finance costs

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Interest on loan from parent undertaking 28,136 20,570
interest on bank overdrafts and loans ' 27,580 23,060
Bank loan facility fees 3,481 1,770
Interest on lease liabilities 2,375 1,759
Other financial expenses 241 205
Total interest expense 61,813 47,364
Fair value changes arising on derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge accounting relationship 277 221
62,090 47,585

The loss on derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge accounting relationship relates to the profit and loss movement in the
period in relation to interest rate swaps and caps designated as cash flow hedges on the Group's loan facilities, details of

which are disclosed in note 22.

11. Staff information
Staff costs (including directors) during the year were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Wages and salaries 114,184 119,288
Social security costs 19,958 19,192
Other pension costs 3,719 3,744
137,861 142,224

The Company has no employees other than its directors, whose remuneration is disclosed in note 12.
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11. Staff information (continued)

The average number of employees during the period, calculated in accordance with Companies Act 2006 requirements,
was:

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

Number Number

Administration and management 468 399
Operations 1,905 1,706
Sales and marketing 582 573
2,955 2,678

Share based incentives

Some eligible senior employees (the ‘employees’) participate in a Management Incentive Programme scheme (MIP), whereby
they paid full market value for shares in a non-Group MIP entity, granted to them under the MIP. As the employees paid full
market value for the shares there is no benefit to the employees as a result of the issue of the MIP shares to them. Accordingly,
no share-based payment charge is recognised in the Group financial statements for the granting of the MIP shares to the
employees.

Under the MIP, the employees were able to receive a non-Group funded loan to fund between 0% and 100% of the full market
value for the shares granted to them under the MIP. As the loans were issued to the employees on market terms and bear
interest at 5% there is no benefit arising from this aspect of the loans. There is a potential benefit to the employees if, on the
eventual sale of the Group, the total sate proceeds of the MIP shares purchased fall below the loan value plus accrued interest.
In this event the recourse to the employees for repayment of the loans is limited to the value of the proceeds received by the
employees upon the eventual sale of the shares. Due to the low probability that the circumstances necessary to crystallise
this benefit would occur, the potential share based payment charge to the Group is considered to be not material and no
charge has therefore been reflected in the financial statements.

COVID-19 Payroll support

Included in profit or loss is $7,769,000 of government grants obtained relating to supporting the payroll of the Group's
employees. The Group has elected to present these government grants as a reduction in the related expense, employment
costs, rather than recognising these separately. The terms and conditions of the grants provided varied in each geographical
market in which the Group operates, the Group has met all conditions relating to government grants that have been recognised
in employment costs. The Group does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to this programme.

12. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year was as follows:

Year ended 31 December -

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Remuneration 1,979 2,071
Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 33 39
Benefits in kind 24 29
2,036 2,139

During the year benefits were accruing to three directors under defined contribution pension schemes. The highest paid
director received remuneration of $692,000 (2019: $684,000). The value of the company's contributions to a defined
contribution pension scheme in relation to the highest paid director was $14,000 (2019: $15,000).
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13. Tax .
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense:

Current year 3,844 2,993
Adjustments in respect of prior years (627) 3,320
3,217 6,313

Deferred tax (note 23):
‘Origination and reversal of temporary differences (4,569) (5.432)
Change in tax rate on deferred tax assetliability brought forward 1,110 (155)
Adjustments in respect of prior years ‘ 228 (103)
Recognition/(derecognition) of previously unrecognised deferred tax liability 400 (57)
Total deferred tax credit (2,831) (5,747)
Total tax charge 386 566

The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profitis 19 per cent (2019: 19 per cent) of the estimated taxable profit
for the year in the income statement for the Group, which at 31 December 2019 was resident for tax purposes in England and
Wales (2019: England and Wales). A reduction to the UK corporation tax rate down from 19% to 17% was announced in the
2016 Budget and enacted on 15 September 2016 (to be effective from 1 April 2020) but this reduction was withdrawn in 2020
before it became effective. In addition, in the March 2021 Budget it was announced that the UK corporation tax rate would
rise to 25% from 1 April 2023. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax credit for each period can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2019

2020 Restated*

$°000 $'000

Loss before tax on continuing operations (117,718) (29,244)
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19 per cent (2019: 19 per cent) (22,366) (5,556)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 13,573 5,279
Tax effect of non-taxable income - (6,414)
Tax effect of tax losses in current period not utilised and deferred tax not recognised 9,076 6,268
Tax effect of other temporary differences where deferred tax not recognised 468 151
Utilisation of brought forward losses where losses previously not provided (27) (1,019)
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the tax of prior years - current tax (627) 3,320
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the tax of prior years — deferred tax 228 (103)
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax asset/liability brought forward 1,110 (155)
Tax effect of items charged at non-standard rate (1,449) (1,148)
Recognition/(derecognition) of previously unprovided deferred tax liability 400 (57)
Total tax charge for the year 386 566

* see note 37.

The tax rate used for the above reconciliation is the effective domestic rate of tax in the United Kingdom, being the country in

which the Company is domiciled. This has remained at 19% throughout 2018 and 2020.
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14. Dividends

No dividends have been declared in the two periods covered in the Financial Statements.

15. Goodwill
Accumulated

impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
$'000 $'000 $000
At 1 January 2019 . 265,442 (11,298) 254,144
Acquisitions 45,488 - 45,488
Exchange differences 2,768 121 2,889
At 1 January 2020 : 313,698 (11,177) 302,521
Acquisitions (note 30) . 9,500 - 9,500
Exchange differences 12,918 (606) 12,312
At 31 December 2020 336,116 (11,783) 324,333

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units or group of cash
generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination. All CGUs in the Group are geographical
areas with the exception of WL Trading which operates in different markets with independent cash flows arising from those
markets. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

Opening Closing

Goodwill Exchange Goodwill

balance  Acquisitions differences balance

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

North America 70,559 - 180 70,749
Scandinavia 10,716 902 1,152 12,770
Australia 39,933 - 3,956 43,889
Germany 12,634 - 1,182 13,816
WL Trading 19,350 - - 19,350
UK 119,358 633 4,220 124,211
Chile 14,188 1,146 512 15,846
France 2,880 - 269 3,149
Other 12,903 6,819 831 20,553
Total 302,521 9,500 ) 12,312 324,333

Within the “Other” category are a number of CGUs (the “Other CGUs") for which the amount of goodwill allocated to each unit
is not significant in comparison with the Group's total carrying amount of goodwill.

The Group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from the higher of value in use (“VIU") and fair value less cost to sell
(“FVLCS"). The cash flow forecasts are based on the most recent Board approved budget and projections for next five years.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the revenue growth rates, terminal value growth
rates, discount rates and EBITDA margins. These assumptions are reviewed and revised annually in light of current economic
conditions and the future outlook of each CGU.

The Directors estimate discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the conditions specific to each CGU. For the following significant CGUs, the post-tax discount rates were used in the VIU
models and the equivalent pre-tax discount rates are shown below:

UK - 12.4% (2019: 12.4%)

Australia — 13.9% (2019: 13.8%)
North America ~ 12.6% (2019: 13.1%)
Scandinavia — 11.5% (2019: 11.8%)
Chile - 15.1%

Germany — 12.9% (2019: 12.3%)
France — 12.3% (2019: 12.3%)

WL Trading — 11.4% (2019: 10.5%)
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15. Goodwill (continued) .
For the remaining CGUs a range of pre-tax discount rates from 11.3% to 15.5% percent was used (2019: 10.5% to
13.8%).

The revenue growth rates used in the initial five-year term consider the existing customer base and revenue commitments
from it, anticipated additional sales to existing and new customers, and specific market trends that are currently seen or
expected in the future including expected impact of COVID-19. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market. The compound average growth rates (CAGR) applied to revenue
range from 5.5% to 24.8% (2019: 2.5% to 22.7%) with a long-term growth rate ranging from 1.2% to 4.0% (2019: 1.1% to
3.5%) applied in the terminal value calculation, based on long-term inflation rates of the geographic market in which the CGUs
operate.

EBITDA margins are assumed to remain sustainable, an assumption which is supported by historical experience. The margins
vary between CGUs dependent on the market and growth stage of the CGU. The average EBITDA margins applied in the
projection period range from 22.0% to 53.4% (2019: 14.7% to 50.8%).

Where FVLCS is used as the hierarchy level 3 valuation method, the recoverable amount of the CGU is calculated by applying
either an appropriate EBITDA or a revenue multiple based on available current market data and deducting estimated costs to
sell the business.

FVLCS was used for North America, France and Colombia as it was higher than the VIU. For all other CGUs the impairment
review has only been based on VIU as this supported the carrying value.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. Details of the 2020 acquisitions are disclosed in note 30.

Impairment reviews were perforrhed for each CGU, including sensitivity analysis (discussed below). The sensitivities modelled
for VIU were the downside in the average EBITDA margin, revenue CAGR, discount rate, or the terminal growth. For FVLCS
the reasonably possible downsides have been based on EBITDA or revenue multiples.

No impairment in the value of goodwill in any of the CGUs was identified.
Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions detailed above. The following
changes would result in the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount:

- Hungary: A decrease in the average EBITDA margin of 2.4%, or an increase in the discount rate of 2.6%,.or a
decrease in the revenue CAGR of 1.8%, would result in the carrying amount of the CGU being equal to its recoverable
amount.

- Scandinavia: A decrease in the average EBITDA margin of 3.4%, or a decrease in the revenue CAGR of 3.5% would
result in the carrying amount of the CGU being equal to its recoverable amount.

- Chile: A decrease in the average EBITDA margin of 5.6%, or an increase in the discount rate of 1.3%, or a decrease
in the revenue CAGR of 2.9%, or a decrease in the terminal value growth rate to 2.2% would result in the carrying
amount of the CGU being equal to its recoverable amount.

Further to the above, sensitivity analysis has also been performed on the CGUs where FVLCS was used. The following
changes, which are not considered to be reasonably possible would result in the carrying amount of the CGU to equal its
recoverable amount:

- North America: A decrease in the multiple of 24.1% would result in the carrying amount of the CGU being equal to
its recoverable amount.

- France: A decrease in the multiple of 54.7% would result in the carrying amount of the CGU being equal to its
recoverable amount.
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16. Other intangible assets

Brand names, Assets in Acquired branm‘r]vl\':: Other acquired
Customer Dovelopment trademarks ths course of customer trademarks Re-acquired intangible
retationships costs and patents construction Software relationships and patenis rights assets Total
$°000 . $000 1 $'000 $'000 $°000 1 $000 $'000 $000

Cost .
At 1 January 2019 8,749 3,981 424 9,503 5,789 203,018 37,173 69,635 37,302 375,574
Additions 10,475 1,130 347 7,167 1,579 - - - - 20,698
Acaquisitions - - - - 22 65,460 3,194 - 2,258 70,934
Exchange differences {19) - 1 548 145 456 207 (480) 2,425 3,281
At 31 December 2019 19,205 5111 770 17,218 7,535 268,934 40,574 69,155 41,985 470,487
Additions 10,734 810 430 - 5,270 - - - - 17,244
Acquisitions (note 30) - 40 - - 2 15,861 519 - 342 16,864
Reclassifications - - - (17,176) 17,176 - - - - -
Exchange differences 409 363 (15) (42) 837 11,927 1,308 3,220 930 18,937
At 31 December 2020 30,348 6,324 1,185 - 30,820 286,822 42,401 72,375 43,257 623,532
Accumulated
amortisation
At 1 January 2019 378 1,646 159 - 2,964 50.785 12,278 21,513 15,544 105,267
Charge for the year 1,065 967 167 - 1,167 17,708 4,134 7,232 3,744 36,184
Exchange differences 25 1 1 - 120 115 112 739 62 1,175
At 31 December 2019 1,468 2,614 327 - 4,251 68,608 16,524 29,484 19,350 142,626
Charge for the year 1,558 920 184 - 1,976 20,604 3,999 7,327 4,000 40,568
Exchange differences 124 238 (24) - (212) 4,536 487 1,759 215 7,123
At 31 December 2020 3,150 3,772 487 - 6,015 93,748 21,010 38,570 23,565 190,317
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 27,198 2,552 698 - 24,805 203,074 21,391 33,805 19,692 333,215

At 31 December 2019 17,737 2,497 443 17,218 3,284 200,326 24,050 39,671 22,635 327,861

Assets in the course of construction comprise the Group's global ERP solution referred to in the Strategic report. The asset is being amortised over a period of 10 years from the date that it was
commissioned. Other intangibles include technology and non-compete agreements.
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17. Property, plant and equipment

Propenty Fixtures, Assets in
Rental¢ i and Point-of- Plant and Gitings and Motor the course of
$000 & inery vehicles construction Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 9,360 2,202 148,146 11,614 8,679 5,157 . 185,248
Additions 5,208 516 45,135 2,132 2617 877 1,806 58,291
Acquisilions - 1,036 8,468 982 300 710 . 11,496
Disposals (414) - 1,994) (54) (36) (544) - (3.042)
Transferved to right-of-use assets - - - - - {3.324) . {3.324)
Redassifications - (10) 771 (931) 157 13 - -
Exchange differences (42) 56 827 194 60 20 a3 1,148
At 31 December 2018 14,112 3,890 201,353 13,937 11,777 2,809 ’ 1,839 249,817
Additions 4,520 716 35,982 1.420 3,257 536 180 46,611
Acquisitions (note 30) - 34 1,227 617 37 200 . 2,115
Disposals (861) (74) (7.103) (135) (592) (1,649) . (10.414)
Reclassifications - 335 (655) 543 (616) 1,106 (907) (194)
Exchange differences 686 180 11,998 782 855 17 45 14,663
At 31 December 2020 18,457 5,081 242,802 17,164 14,718 3.219 1, 1A57 302,598
Accumulated depreciation .
At 1 January 2019 3,045 715 58,837 5,071 4413 2,447 - 74,528
Charge for the year 2,302 435 30.211 2,242 2,084 989 T 38,263
Eliminated on dispesal {414) - (1.325) (34) (29) {372) - (2.174)
Transferred to right-of-use assets - - - - - {1,337) - {1.337)
Reclassifications - 1 {290) 525 (151) (85) - -
’ Exchange differences (15) 19 295 106 55 4 . 464
Al 31 December 2019 4,918 1,170 87,728 7.910 6,372 1.646 - 109,744
Charge for the year 3,085 677 35,525 2,452 2,389 668 - 44,796
Etiminated on disposa) . (861) (18) {6.330) (25) (534) (563) .7 (8,331)
Rectassifications - 2) m (1.078) (105) (416) - (830)
Exchange differences 307 78 6,120 481 516 69 - 7,571
At 31 December 2020 7.449 - 1,905 123,814 9,740 8,638 1.404 - 152,950
Carrylng amount .
At 31 December 2020 11,008 3,176 118,988 7,424 6,080 1,815 1,187 149,648
At 31 December 2019 9,194 2,720 113,625 6.027 5,405 1.263 1.839 140,073
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17. Property, plant and equipment
Assets in the course of construction comprise the Group's construction of a production plant in the USA. The asset will be
depreciated over a period of between three and ten and years from the date that it is commissioned.

Right-of-use assets

Property and Fixtures, .
leasehold Plant and fittings and Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 - - - - -
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 20,897 61 : 221 8,832 30,011
Additions 11,976 96 - 8 5,902 17,982
Acquisitions (note 30) 1,997 - - 419 2,416
Disposals (1,004) (12) - (684) (1,700)
Transfers - - - 3,324 3,324
Exchange differences 77 2 (5) 88 162
At 31 December 2019 33,943 147 224 17,881 52,195
Additions 7,528 37 131 6,366 14,062
Acquisitions (note 30) 213 - - 445 658
Disposals (2,762) (1) (10) (3,204) (5,977)
Reclassifications (19) - - (251) (270)
Exchange differences 1,894 10 29 1,229 3,162
At 31 December 2020 40,797 193 374 22,466 63,830
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 - - - - -
Charge for the year 6,192 51 76 4,658 10,977
Eliminated on disposal (201) (12) - (483) (696)
Transfers - - - 1,337 1,337
Exchange differences 71 1 - 60 132
At 31 December 2019 6,062 40 76 5,672 11,750
Charge for the year 7,450 . 58 80 6,058 13,646
Eliminated on disposal (1,223) (1) (5) (2,525) (3,754)
Reclassifications (10) - - 376 366
Exchange differences 633 6 14 657 1,310
At 31 December 2020 12,912 103 165 10,138 23,318
‘ Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 27,885 90 209 12,328 40,512
At 31 December 2019 27,881 ) 107 148 12,309 40,445

No freehold property was held by the Group as at 31 December 2020 (2019: $nil). The Group had no capital commitments
at 31 December 2020 (2019: $nil). :
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18. Subsidiaries

The Group's subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2020 are listed below, including the name, country of

incorporation and proportion of ownership interest.

Ownership interest

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited | Annual report and accounts 2020

Registered Direct Indirect
Campany name office Principal activity Class of shares % %
Aguapura Aguaviva S.L (a) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Andrew’s Water Treatment
Limited {c) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Angel Springs Holdings
Limited (d) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Aqua Cure Limited (c) Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Aqua Cure (Scotland) Limited (e) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Aquanor Holding AB (formerly (r) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Holding AB)
Aquarius X1 Limited (d) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Billi Australia Pty Limited (aa) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Billi Financial Services Pty Ltd (aa) Finance : Ordinary - 100%
Billi R&D Pty Ltd (aa) Product development Ordinary - 100%
Billi UK LLP (2) Distribution and service N/a - 100%
Bronte Spring Water Limited  (d) Dormant ) Ordinary - 100%
Bronte Water Coolers Limited (d) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Cameron Water Limited (ag) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Cariad Cool Water Limited (d) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Embotelladora Perla Clara
SpA (ah) Bottling, distribution and service  Ordinary - 100%
Escowa AB (h) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Fillongley Spring Water (i) Bottling and distribution Ordinary . 100%
Limited
Fillongley Ventures Limited (i Holding Company Ordinary - 100%
GLGB Limited (ab) Holding Company Ordinary - 100%
Hidrospot SAS ~ (ak) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Industrial Hot & Cold Limitada (ah) Fabrication facility Ordinary - 100%
Interidr Vatten Skane AB (ae) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Kingshill Mineral Water Limited (ag) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Office Beverages Limited (d) Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Office Watercoolers (S.W.)
Limited (d) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Palmheath investments
Limited (k) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Pelican Technical Solutions (c) Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Limited _
Prisma Water SpA (ai) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Prisma Water Home SpA (ai) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
‘Puralia Systems SLU (a) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Qingdao Waterlogic
Manufacturing Co. Limited )] Manufacturer Ordinary - 100%
Reservdelar i Sverige AB (n Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Svensk Storkoksservice AB. (r) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
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18. Subsidiaries (continued)

Ownership interest

Registered Direct Indirect
Company name office Principal activity Class of shares % %
Thoreau International AB (b) Distribution and franchisor Ordinary - 100%
Tipperary Pure Irish Water
(Sales) Unlimited Company (aj) Distribution and service Ordinary ’ - 100%
Vattentornet Aqua Concilio AB (b) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany BV {m) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany Home
Products BV {m) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany International - 100%
BV {m) Holding company Ordinary
Waterconcept AB (b) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterfirst Queensland Pty Ltd (n) Dormant Ordinary - 100%

. Preferred/

Waterlogic Americas LLC (o) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Australia Holdings :
Pty Limited (n) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Australia Pty '
Limited (n) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Belgium BVBA H Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Canada Inc (af) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Chile SPA (ah) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Commercial .
Products LLC (o) Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic CZ sro (ac) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Danmark Aps (9) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
(formerly Aqualine Aps)
Waterlogic Finance Limited (P) Finance Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Finance 2 Limited (p) Finance Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic France SAS @) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic GB Limited
(formerly Angel Springs
Limited) (d) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Woaterlogic GmbH Q) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Holdings GmbH (s) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Holdings Limited (P) Holding company . Ordinary 100% -
Waterlogic Hydration Services '
Limited (formerly All Water
Systems Limited) (y) Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic International
Limited (t) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Limited (u) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Magyarorszag - 100%
Hungaria Korlatolt FelelGsségu
Tarsasag {ad) Distribution and service Ordinary
Waterlogic Norge AS v) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Sverige AB (r) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Tipperary Water
Limited (aj) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic UK Limited (d) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic USA Finance Inc  (w) Finance Ordinary - 100%
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18. Subsidiaries (continued)

Ownership interest

Registered Direct Indirect

Company name office Principal activity Class of shares % %

Waterlogic USA Holdings Inc  (x) Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic USA Inc {x) Holding and management service

company Ordinary - 100%

WLI Trading Limited (y) Distribution Ordinary - 100%

WLI (UK) Limited P) Service company Ordinary - 100%

Zeal Chile S.A. (ah) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%

Registered office addresses:’

(a) Calle Medea 4, 1° B 28037, Madrid, Spain
(b) Klangfargsgatan 10, 42652 Vastra Frolunda, Sweden

(c) Unit 3a and 3b Dakota Business Park, Dakota Way, Burscough, Lancashire, L40 8AF, United Kingdom

(d) Angel House, Shaw Road, Wolverhampton, WV10 SLE, United Kingdom

(e) Lawgrove Studio, Lawgrove Place, Inveralmond Industrial Estate, Perth, Perthshire, PH1 3XQ, United Kingdom

N Te 3000 Leuven, Engels Plein, 35 bus 0101,Belgium
(9) Lene Haus Vej 15, 7430 |kast, Denmark

(h) Bergkallavagen 30, 192 79, Sollentuna, Sweden
(i) Tamworth Road, Fillongley, Coventry, CV7 8DZ, United Kingdom
()] 8 Rue de Commandant d'Estienne d'Orves, Parc d'Activités des Chanteraines,

92390 Villeneuve La Garenne, France
(k) PO Box 362, Road Town, Tortola, VG 1110 British Virgin Islands
()] No.2, Hongxiang Three Road, Jinling Industrial Zone, Chengyang District, Qingdao, China
(m) De Gorzen 21, 4731 TV Oudenbosch, Nethedands
(n) 37 Sundercombe Street, Osborne Park, WA6017 Australia
(0) Capitol Services Inc, 1675 S State St Ste B, Dover, DE 19901 United States of America
(P) 1 Grenfell Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, SL6 1HN, United Kingdom
(Q) Eichenweg 8, 74321, Bietigheim-Bissengen, Germany
(r) Von Utfallsgatan 16 c, 415 05 Goteberg, Sweden
(s) Kleinsachsenheimer Str. 26, 74321 Bietigheim-Bissingen, Germany
(t) 308 East Bay Street, 4th floor, PO Box N7768, Nassau, The Bahamas
(u) 22 Grenville Street, St Helier, Jersey JE4 8PX Channel Islands
v) Trollasveien 34-36, 1414, Trolldsen, Norway
{w) 11710 Stonegate Circle, Omaha, NE 68164 United States of America
(x) 77 McCullough Drive, Ste. 9, Newcastle, DE 19720 United States of America
(y) Second Floor, Beacon Court, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland
(2) Synergy House, Fakenham Road, Morton on the Hill, Norwich NRS 5SP, United Kingdom
(aa) 42 Lucknow Crescent, Thomastown, Victoria 3074, Australia

(ab) C/o Montacs Regus House, Herons Way, Chester Business Park, Chester, Cheshire, CH4 9QR, United Kingdom

(ac) Ke Slivenci 48, Lochkov, 154 00 Prague 5, Czech Republic

(ad) 1145 Budapest, Javor utca 5/A., Hungary :

(ae) AB Moranvagen 9, 18 640 Vallentuna, Sweden

(an 4580 Eastgate Parkway, Unit 3, Mississauga, ON L4W 4KA, Canada
(ag) 9 Guthrie Street, Hamiiton, ML3 6LD, Scotland

(ah) Isidora Goyenechea, Nro. 3120, Las Condes, Santiago, Chile

(ai) Valle Insigne 3259, Lo Barnecha, Santiago, Chile

(aj) Bulmers House, Keeper Road, Crumlin, Dublin 12, Ireland

(ak) Carrera 26 no. 70-64, Bogota, Colombia

All subsidiaries have co-terminus accounting periods at 31 December 2020.
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18. Subsidiaries (continued)

Parent company guarantees

The following subsidiary companies are exempt from the requirements under the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of
financial statements under section 479A of that Act. Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited has provided a parent company
guarantee over the liabilities of each of these subsidiary companies, pursuant to section 479C of the Companies Act 2006.

Company name

Andrew's Water Treatment Limited
Angel Springs Holdings Limited
Aqua Cure Limited

Aqua Cure (Scotland) Limited
Aquarius X1 Limited

Billi UK LLP

Bronte Spring Water Limited
Bronte Water Coolers Limited
Cameron Water Limited

Cariad Cool Water Limited
Fillongley Spring Water Limited
Fillongley Ventures Limited
GLGB Limited

Kingshili Mineral Water Limited
Office Beverages Limited
Office Watercoolers (S.W.) Limited
Waterlogic Finance Limited
Waterlogic Finance 2 Limited
Waterlogic Holdings Limited
Waterlogic UK Limited

WLI (UK) Limited

19. Inventories

Company number
06772267
07617386
06330499
$C232827
04212212
0C381177
11769185
03338516
SC181505
04186182
07555626
07680170
08510820
SC221124
09111912
04268234
09899276
11415204
09297346
04832980
04051205

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
POU machines and spares 37,615 39,645
Consumables 3,353 3,277
40,968 42,922

20. Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
$'000 $000
Amounts due from customers 73,882 70,575
Allowance for expected credit losses (12,779) (5.594)
61,103 64,981
Other debtors and prepayments 12,686 12,813
Trade and other receivables 73,789 77,794
Contract costs: sales commissions capitalised 3,663 2,801
Trade receivables, other receivables and contract costs 77,452 80,595

Trade receivables are valued at amortised cost. The average credit period offered on sales of goods during 2020 was 20 days

(2019: 22 days). This reflects variations in credit terms offered by entities operating in different countries.
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20. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Interest or fixed fee penalties for late payment are charged by some Group entities at rates applicable in the corresponding
countries. Some jurisdictions operate a legally enforceable late payment penalty where applicable. The interest is typically
charged monthly and ranges between 0.1 and (.7 per cent per month (2019: between 0.1 and 1.3 per cent per month) on the
outstanding balance. In some countries a fixed fee may be charged and this ranges between $14 and $49 (2019: between $9
and $45). :

Allowances for expected credit losses are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable amounts
determined by reference to past default experience. Specific counterparty risk is also considered where an analysis of the
counterparty’s current and future financial position indicates a change in credit risk.

Trade receivables include amounts which are past due at the year-end but against which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for expected credit losses in full. The Group retains title to all equipment supplied under rental agreements.

Trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Gross value of unimpaired trade receivables 63,028 64,171
Gross value of impaired trade receivables 10,854 6,404
Gross value of trade receivables 73,882 70,575
Allowance for expected credit losses/allowance for doubtful debts (12,779) (5,594)
61,103 64,981

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

Ageing of receivables 2020 2018
Unimpaired impaired Total Unimpaired Impaired Total
. $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $:000 $'000
Not overdue 27,759 485 28,244 29,003 915 29,918
Overdue between 0 to 30 days 15,113 277 15,390 14,883 1,011 15,894
Overdue between 31 to 60 days 4,903 320 5,223 6,421 339 6.760
Overdue between 61 to 90 days 3,575 432 4,007 3,432, 385 3,817
Overdue more than 90 days 11,678 9,340 21,018 10,432 3,754 14,186
63,028 10,854 73,882 64,171 6,404 70,575

The average age of unimpaired trade receivables is 44 days (2019: 37 days) and for impaired receivables is 275 days
(2019: 289 days). ’ :

2020 2019
Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses $'000 $000
Balance at the beginning of the period (5,594) (3,968)
Impairment losses recognised i . (9,685) (3.453)
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible 2,336 1,648
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables 699 342
Amounts recovered during the year 45 (5)
Other movements 27 44
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses (607) (202)
Balance at the end of the period (12,779) (5,594)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the relevant year end. The concentration of credit risk is limited due
to the customer base being large and diverse in terms of industry sector.

There are no expected credit losses in respect of (i) financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets; or (ii) financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired). In some instances receivable balances that have been written
off remain subject to enforcement activity.
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20. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group generally retains a security interest in equipment as collateral for the amounts due and is contractually entitled to

recover equipment supplied under rental agreements in the event of default by rental customers.

Contract costs: sales commissions capitalised

Contract costs comprise sales commissions earned by employees in relation to new and renewed service contracts with
customers and are capitalised and amortised over the estimated useful life of the contract. The table below shows the

movements during the period.

Total

$'000
At 1 January 2019 1,904
Commissions capitalised in the year 1,595
Amortisation (680)
Exchange difference (18)
At 31 December 2019 2,801
Commissions capitalised in the year 1,733
Amortisation (979)
Exchange difference 108
At 31 December 2020 3,663

Of the carrying value at 31 December 2020, an amount of $1,225,000 (2019: $1,088,000) is expected to be amortised over
the next twelve months. The remainder will be amortised over a period of between one and eight years.

21. Borrowings

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans (net of unamortised finance fees) 775,788 616,725
Lease liabilities (note 24) 42,419 40,150
Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Accrued interest due to parent undertaking 22,586 92,521
Loan from parent undertaking 325,890 202,218
1,166,683 951,614
Amounts due for settiement within twelve months .
Bank borrowings (net of unamortised finance fees) 367 18,240
Lease liabilities (note 24) 12,388 10,894
12,755 29,134
Amounts due for settiement after twelve months
Bank borrowings (net of unamortised finance fees) 775,421 598,485
Accrued interest due to parent Gndertaking 22,586 92,521
Loan from parent undertaking 325,890 202,218
Bank and other borrowings due for settlement after twelve months 1,123,897 893,224
Lease liabilities 30,031 29,256
Amounts due for settlement after twelve months 1,153,928 922,480
Total borrowings 1,166,683 951,614
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21. Borrowings (continued)

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

US Australian Norwegian Swedish

Dollars Dollars Krone Euros Krona GBP Other Total

31 December 2020 '$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bank loans (net of unamortised

finance fees) 65,938 - 592,823 - 116,624 403 ° 775,788

Accrued interest due to parent

undertaking - 22,586 - - - 22,586

Loan from parent undertaking - 325,890 - - - 325,890

Lease liabilities (note 24) 11,932 4,463 2,099 8,014 2,833 8,935 4,143 42,419

11,932 70,401 2,099 949,313 2,833 125,559 4,546 1,166,683

us Australian Norwegian Swedish

Dollars Dollars Krone Euros Krona GBP Other Total

31 December 2018 $'000 $000 $:000 $'000 $000 $'000 $:000 $'000
Bank loans (net of unamortised

finance fees) 671 60,274 - 429,357 - 126,423 - 616,725

Accrued interest due to parent

undertaking - - - 92,521 - - - 92,521

Loan from parent undertaking - - - 202,218 - - - 202,218

Lease liabilities (note 24) 12,850 2,787 2,354 7,950 2,186 9,389 2,634 40,150

13,521 63,061 2,354 732,046 2,186 135,812 2,634 951,614

The other principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Fees charged on facilities are assessed on an annual basis with the majority of fees being paid on a quarterly or calendar year
basis. Any fees are included in the determination of the effective interest rate and are charged to the Income Statement over
the life of the facility, except where the Directors judge that the facility is unlikely to be used at which time the unamortised
fees are immediately expensed through the income Statement.

The loan from the parent undertaking bears interest at a fixed rate of and falls due for repayment in 2030.

At 31 December 2020 the Group had the following principal bank loans:

Maturity date

Repayable Rate

Carrying value
31 December

2020
3'000

Facility B EUR (TLB1)
Facility B EUR (UF)
Facility B EUR (UF)

0]
(ii)
(iii)

Facility B GBP (TLB2) (iv)
Facility B AUD (TLB3A)  (v)
Facility B AUD (TLB3B)  (vi)
Facility B1 EUR (UF) (vii)
Facility B1 EUR (UF) (viii)

14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025
14 March 2025

In full on maturity
In full on maturity
In full on maturity
In full on maturity
In full on maturity
In full on maturity
In full on maturity

In full on maturity

EURIBOR + 3.75%
EURIBOR + 3.75%
EURIBOR + 3.75%
LIBOR + 4.0%
BBSY + 4.5%
BBSY +4.5%
EURIBOR + 3.75%
EURIBOR + 3.75%

251,425
88,305
132,458
119,438
4,625
62,899
30,662
104,250

Other bank borrowings .
Accrued commitment fees

Unamortised finance fees

794,062
374

24
(18,672)

775,788
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21, Borrowings (continued)

See below for details of funding:

(i) A Euro denominated loan (‘TLB1') which is held by Waterlogic Holdings GmbH and Waterogic Finance Ltd (as
borrowers) was drawn on 14 March 2018. The loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025. The Group
hedges part of this loan for interest rate risk using an interest rate cap.

(i) On 31 October 2018 a Euro denominated Uncommitted Facility (a “UF") was drawn by Waterlogic Finance Limited (as
borrower), which then became fungible with the TLB1. The loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025.

(iii) On 31 July 2019 a Euro denominated Uncommitted Facilify ("UF") was drawn by Waterlogic Finance Limited (as
borrower), which has become fungible with the TLB1. The loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025.

(iv) A Pounds Sterling denominated loan ('TLB2') which is held by Waterlogic Finance Ltd (as borrower) was drawn on 14
March 2018. This loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025. Up until March 2019 the Group hedged
a portion of this loan for interest rate risk using an interest rate swap, exchanging variable rate interest for fixed rate interest.

(v) An Australian Dollar denominated term loan (' TLB3A') which is held by Waterlogic Finance Ltd (as borrower) was drawn
on 14 March 2018. This loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity,.14 March 2025. The Group hedges a portion of
this loan for interest rate risk using an interest rate cap.

(vi) An Australian Dollar denominated term loan (‘TLB3B’) which is held by Waterlogic Australia Holdings Pty Ltd (as
borrower) was drawn on 14 March 2018. This loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025. The Group
hedges a portion of this loan for interest rate risk using an interest rate cap.

(vii) In March 2020 a Euro denominated Uncommitted Facility (“UF") was drawn by Waterlogic Finance Limited (as
borrower), which has become fungible with the TLB1. The loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025.

(viii) In October 2020 a Euro denominated Uncommitted Facility (“UF") was drawn by Waterlogic Finance Limited (as
borrower), which has become fungible with the TLB1. The loan is repayable in full on the date of maturity, 14 March 2025.

The Group had the following principal bank loans at 31 December 2019:

Carrying value

31 Decerzv};egr

Maturity date Repayable Rate $'000

Facility B EUR (TLB1) M 14 March 2025 In full on maturity EURIBOR + 3.75% 229,920
Facility B EUR (UF) (i) 14 March 2025 In full on maturity EURIBOR + 3.75% 80,753
Facility B EUR (UF) (iii) 14 March 2025 In full on maturity EURIBOR + 3.75% 121,129
Facility B GBP (TLB2) (iv) 14 March 2025 In full on maturity LIBOR + 4.0% 115,375
Facility B AUD (TLB3A) v) 14 March 2025 In full on maturity BBSY +4.5% 4,208
Facility B AUD (TLB3B) (vi) 14 March 2025 In full on maturity BBSY + 4.5% 57,230
Revolving credit facility 14 March 2025 In full on maturity LIBOR + 3.0% 19,738
628,353

Other bank borrowings 199
Accrued commitment fees 173
Unamortised finance fees ’ (12,000)
616,725

At 31 December 2020 the bank loans were guaranteed by various entities within the Group, including the Company, Waterlogic
Group Holdings Limited. The bank loans at 31 December 2020 were subject to a single covenant relating to Group leveraging.

Unamortised finance fees relate to amounts capitalised that were payable to professional advisers and lenders in relation to-
the loan facilities taken out during the period. These fees are being amortised on a straight line basis throughout the loan

period.
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21. Borrowings (continued)
The weighted average effective interest rates paid during the period were as follows:

2020 2019

% %

Bank loans _ 3.85 3.85
Related party loans 10.20 10.20

Related party loans are repayable on 28 April 2030. These loans comprise 10.2% fixed rate unsecured loan notes which were
listed on the International Stock Exchange, Guemsey, on 5 November 2020. Interest is payable annually, and any unpaid interest
will accrue on an annual non-compounding basis. The loan notes are held by several related parties including the parent
undertaking, one minority owner with significant influence and other minority owners without significant influence.

There were no undrawn overdraft facilities at the period end. There have been no breaches of loan agreements during the
period covered by the Financial Statements. :

22. Derivative financial instruments

Current Non-current

2020 2019 2020 2019

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Derivative financial assets that are designated and effective as
hedging instruments carried at fair value:
— interest rate swaps - - - -
— foreign currency forward contracts 434 - - -
— interest rate cap - - -

434 - -
Derivative financial liabilities that are designated and effective as
hedging instruments carried at fair value:
~ interest rate swaps - - - -
~ foreign currency forward contracts - (171) - -

- (171) - -

The Group has in place interest rate cap arrangements in relation to the TLB facilities. In March 2020 the AUD interest rate
cap agreement in relation to the TLB3 loan matured.

The remaining interest rate caps have an average rate of 0.70%, net of margin {2019: 0.81%), and have a combined notional
principal amount of $341,004,000 (2019: $289,953,000). A premium of $684,077 was paid for the caps in 2018. The caps
have been designated as a cash flow hedge in accordance with-IFRS 9. The purpose of the hedge was to impose a limit on
the exposure on the variable interest borrowings.

During the year the Group entered into foreign currency forwards to sell USD and buy CNY. The average rate on the forwards
in place at the end of the year was CNY6.97:$1 (2019: CNY6.84:$1). The forwards have been designated as a cash flow
hedge in accordance with IFRS 8. The purpose of the hedges was to hedge a portion of the Group's exposure to CNY stock
purchases. ,

Hedge ineffectiveness

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.

The Group does not hedge 100% of its CNY purchases, therefore the hedged item is identified as a proportion of the purchases
up to the notional amount of the foreign currency forwards. In the foreign currency forwards the hedged item is modelled by a
“hypothetical derivative” to calculate the change in fair value of the hedged item. The hypothetical derivative is determined at
inception such that it has the same principal terms as the designated hedged item. The forward rate of the hypothetical
derivative is based on the prevailing market forward rates.

Sources of ineffectiveness in hedges of foreign currency purchases may arise if the timing of the forecast transaction changes
from what was originally estimated, a change in the timing of the occurrence of the payment being hedged or if there are
changes in the credit risk of both counterparties.
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22. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The Group enters into interest rate caps that have similar critical terms as the hedged item. The hedged item is modelled by
a “hypothetical derivative” to calculate the change in fair value of the hedged item. The hypothetical derivative is determined
at inception such that it has the same principal terms as the designated hedged cash flows . The Group does not hedge 100%
of its loans, therefore the hedged item is identified as a proportion of the outstanding loan up to the notional amount of the

cap.

Sources of hedge ineffectiveness on the caps may include credit risk of both counterparties under the cap ,a change in the
timing of the cccurrence of the cash flows being hedged and the hedged transactions being no longer highly probable, hence
the notional of the hedging instrument being larger than the actual expected expense.

The cash flow hedges have been designated as effective since the date of inception. An amount of $277,116 (2019: $180,678)
has been recognised in the income statement primarily relating to the release of the time value charge on the cash flow hedges
in place during the year. '

Further details of derivative financial instruments are provided in note 34.
23. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) and assets recognised by the Group:

Intangibles

Accelerated recognised Other Unrelieved

tax on temporary tax
depreciation acquisition differences losses Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
At 1 January 2019 (8,093) (41,893) 5,442 8,736 (35.808)
Arising on acquisitions ) (101) (9,457) - - (9.558)
Credit/(debit) to profit and loss (3,101) 5,737 1,798 1,313 5,747
Debit to other comprehensive income - - 83 - 83
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 18 111 (12) (19) 98
At 1 January 2020 ' (11,277) (45,502) 7,311 10,030 {39,438)
Arising on acquisitions - (2,888) - - (2,888)
Credit/(debit) to profit and loss (737) 4,695 (7,208) 6,081 2,831
Debit to other comprehensive income - - (173) - (173)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) (703) (3,035) 456 625 (2,657)
At 31 December 2020 (12,717) (46,730) 386 16,736 (42,325)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The followiné is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after off set) for financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019
$'000 . $000
Analysed as:
Deferred tax assets 1,994 -
Deferred tax liabilities i (44,319) (39,438)
Deferred tax liability — net (42,325) (39,438)

In addition to the above, at 31 December 2020 the Group had unrecognised deferred tax assets arising in relation to unused
tax losses of $26,944,000 (2019: $25,018,000) and other timing differences of $464,000 (2019: $26,000) available for offset
against future profits. Tax losses of $468,000 expire in 2021, $517,000 in 2022, $308,000 in 2023, $333,000 in 2024 and
$120.000 in 2025. All other losses are available for use indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these losses as itis not considered probable that there will be future taxable profits available in the relevant jurisdictions in the
near future. ’

All unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures are continually reinvested by the Group. As no tax is
expected to be payable on these earnings in the foreseeable future, no deferred tax liabilities are recorded in relation to
them. Earnings which could be remitted on which there would be tax to pay total $34m (2019: $3m). The key factor driving
the increase from the prior year is Brexit, as the EU Parent-Subsidiary directive no longer applies and as such the unremitted
earnings of some subsidiaries previously excluded are now included.

24. Leases

The Group has leases for offices, manufacturing buildings and warehouses, plant and machinery, IT and other office equipment
and motor vehicles. With the exception of short term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected
on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Group classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent
manner to its property, plant and equipment (see Note 17).
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24. Leases (continued)

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Maturity analysis:
Year 1 14,830 = 12,479
Year 2 11,133 10,490
Year 3 ' 8,016 7519
Year 4 ' 5,449 5,013
Year § 3,277 3,059
Onwards . 5,869 7,766
48,574 46,326
Less: future interest : (6,155) (6,176)
Lease liabilities 42,419 40,150
2020 2019
$'000 $000
Analysed as:
Amounts due for settlement within twelve months (shown under current liabilities) 12,388 10,894
Amounts due for settlement after twelve months 30,031 29,256

42,419 40,150

The average remaining lease term at 31 December 2020 was 3.4 years (2019: 4.5 years). For the year ended 31 December
2019, the average effective interest rate was 5.7 per cent (2019: 5.6 per cent). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. For lease
liabilities recognised during the year an incremental borrowing rate of between 3.9% and 7.7% was used (2019: between 3.9%
and 9.0%, including leases recognised on initial adoption of IFRS 16).

Lease payments not recognised as a liability

The Group has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less)
or for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such leases are expenses on a straight line basis. In addition, certain
variable lease payments are not permitted to be recognised as lease liabilities and are expensed as incurred.

The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Short term leases 307 1,054
Leases of low value assets . 20 3
327 1,085

At 31 December 2020 the Group was committed to short term leases and the total commitment at that date was $78,000
(2019: $192,000).

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations is approximately equal to their carrying amount. The Group's obligations under
leases previously classified as finance leases are secured by the lessors' rights over the leased assets disclosed in note 17.

25. Trade and other payables

2020 2019

$°000 $'000

Trade creditors 16,517 24,776
Accruals 15,355 17,446
Other creditors 35,404 27,310
67,276 69,532

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average
credit period taken for trade purchases is 88 days (2019: 122 days). For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade
payables for the first 60 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the outstanding balances at
various interest rates. The Group policy is to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms and to avoid
incurring penalties and/or interest on late payments. Other creditors include sales taxes, property taxes, social security,
employment taxes due to local tax authorities and cash rebates due to customers.
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25. Trade and other payables (continued)
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.

26. Provisions

Statutory
Warranty retirement Difapidation  Environmental
provision scheme provision provision Other Tota!
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $°000 $'000
At 1 January 2019 2,808 200 566 371 1 3,946
Provisions in acquired entities 76 - 49 - 140 265
Change in provision (58) 22 (543) (92) 84 (587)
Exchange difference 32 (2) 3 10 - 43
At 31 December 2019 2,858 220 75 289 225 3,667
Provisions in acquired entities - - 29 - 307 336"
Change in provision (788) 85 524 222 (71) (28)
Exchange difference 111 26 35 23 30 225
At 31 December 2020 2,181 331 663 534 491 4,200
Current 1,840 - 364 - 99 2,303
Non-current 341 3N 299 534 392 1,897
At 31 December 2020 2,181 331 663 534 491 4,200

Warranty provision

The provision for warranty claims represents the Directors’ best estimate for the future outflow of economic benefits required

to meet Group obligations for warranty claims. These estimates also reflect local legislative regulations on the sale of goods.

The warranty liability normally extends up to twelve months and the Directors believe the carrying values shown above
approximate their fair value. The claim provision has been based on historical warranty trends, which may vary due to the use
of new materials, changes in manufacturing processes or other developments that affect product quality.

Statutory retirement scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiary in France are entitled to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government. The subsidiary is required to provide a specified percentage of payroll costs which becomes payable where an
employee reaches state retirement age if, and only if, the employee is in the employ of Waterlogic France at the qualifying
date. The only obligation on the subsidiary, with respect to the retirement benefit scheme, is to make the specified contributions
at that time. For this reason a provision is calculated at each year end based on the number of employed staff, their age and
years of service and a probability that they will be employed by the subsidiary at the qualifying date. The qualifying payments
are payable to the state by the subsidiary at the level specified under the terms of the scheme. The terms include an escalating
entitlement dependent on age and years of service completed. The period of utilisation of the statutory retirement provision is
dependent in part on the life expectancy of the retirees and cannot be reliably estimated.

Dilapidation provision

The dilapidation provision relates to contractual obligations in respect of certain leasehold properties. The provision is
expected to pe utilised between two and five years.

Environmental provision

The environmental provision relates to the Group's obligation under the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (‘"WEEE")
directive to provide for the decommissioning costs of disposal of the Group's water coolers in issue in EU countries at the
balance sheet date. The environmental provision is expected to be utilised over a period from one to ten years.

Other provisions

Other provisions include: a lease restoration provision of $63,000 (2019: $138,000) in relation to the Group's obligations to
restore leased assets to their original condition; a service backlog provision of $164,000 (2019: $nil); a vehicle repairs provision
of $165,000 (2019: $nil). These provisions are expected to be utilised over a period from two to five years. Other provisions
totalling $99,000 (2019: $87,000) are expected to be utilised within one year.
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27. Issued share capital

2020 2019
$'000 $000
Issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £1 each
At start of year 58,431 58,431
Shares issued in the year 3,329 -
At end of year 61,760 58,431

Issue of new shares

On 28 April 2020 2,675,501 Ordinary shares were issued at par. No cash was received for the issue of these shares, as
shareholder loans payable were reduced accordingly. No share premium arose in relation to this transaction. No further
share transactions took place during 2020.

2020 2019

Number Number

Ordinary Shares in issue at par value 43,035,890 40,360,389
Number

Share capital in issue at 1 Jamjary 2019 ) 40,360,389
Shares issued in the year ’ 4 -
Share capital in issue at 31 December 2019 40,360,389
Shares issued in the year ' ' 2,675,501
Share capital in issue at 31 December 2020 43,035,890

The Company has one class of Ordinary Shares, which carry no right to fixed income. There is no limit on the number of
shares that the Company can issue.

28. Hedging and translation reserves

Other capital Hedging  Translation

reserves reserve reserve

$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 January 2019 162 (97) 27,299

Exchange differences on translating the net assets of foreign operations o - (13,426)

Gain recognised on cash flow hedges - (207) -

Balance at 31 Decerﬁber 2019 152 (304) 13,873

Exchange differences on translating the net assets of foreign operations - - (11,968)

Gain recognised on cash flow hedges - 629 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 . 152 325 1,905 -

Other capital reserves
The other capital reserve was generated in 2015 on the buy-out of a minority interest held in Aqua Cure Limited.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed effective in
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in profit and loss only when
the hedged transaction impacts the profit and loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item,
consistent with the applicable accounting policy.

Translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations, which relate to
subsidiaries only, from their functional currency into the Group’s presentation currency, being US Dollars, are recognised
directly in the translation reserve.

No gains or losses were transferred from equity into profit and loss during the period.
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29. Retained earnings

. $'000
Balance at 1 January 2019 (183,768)
Net loss for the year — restated* , (29,810)
Other comprehensive income — restated” -
Balance at 31 December 2019 (213,578)
Net loss for the year -(118,104)
Balance at 31 December 2020 (331,682)
* see note 37.

30. Acquisitions
Bronté Water Coolers Limited and Bronté Spring Water Limited

On 28 August 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Waterogic GB Limited, acquired 100% of the share capital of Bronté Water
Coolers Limited and Bronté Spring Water Limited ("Bronté") for total consideration of $2.8 million. Bronte is a bottled water and
POU business based in Huddersfield, West Yorkshire. The objective of the acquisition was to increase customer density within
the existing UK market. The preliminary purchase price allocation is set out below. .

Fair value
$'000
Net assets acquired:
— property, plant and equipment 267
— trade receivables 207
— other monetary assets 327
- inventory 35
- monetary liabilities assumed (625)
- net deferred tax liabitity (487)
- intangible assets recognised 2,447
Total net assets acquired 2,171
Goodwill recognised 633
2,804
Satisfied by:
— cash consideration 2,804
2,804
Net cash flow on acquisition:
Cash consideration 2,804
Less: cash acquired {314)
2,490

Goodwill is an intangible asset that represents that portion of the entire business value that cannot be attributed to other income
producing business assets, tangible or intangible. One of the drivers of goodwill is the assembled workforce. None of the
goodwill recognised of $633,000 is tax deductible. Of the trade receivable purchased of $207,000, the gross contractual amount
receivable is $222,000.

Intangible assets of $2,447,000 have been recognised comprising brand value and ongoing customer relationships that existed
at the date of acquisition and are being amortised over periods of five and fifteen years respectively. A deferred tax liability has
been recognised in respect of the intangible assets. The amortisation charges of the intangible assets will not be deductible for
tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $120,000 have been expensed and are included in administrative expenses as incurred. Bronté
contributed $269,000 of revenue and $62,000 of operating profit to the Group’s results for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date. Had the acquisition of Bronté occurred on 1 January 2020, Group revenue would have
been approximately $633,000 higher and Group operating profit would have been approximately $129,000 higher.
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30. Acquisitions (continued)
Tipperary Pure Irish Water (Sales) Unlimited Company

On 20 October 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Waterlogic Hydration Services Limited and a newly formed subsidiary
Waterlogic Tipperary Water Limited, acquired 100% of the share capital of Tipperary Pure Irish Water (Sales) Unlimited
Company (“Tipperary") for total consideration of $12.5 million. Tipperary is a bottled water and POU business based in Tipperary,
Ireland. The objective of the acquisition was to increase customer density within the existing Irish market. The preliminary
purchase price allocation is set out below.

Fair value
$'000
Net assets acquired:
— property, plant and equipment 1,018
— intangible assets A 40
- right-of-use assets ) 452
— trade receivables 322
— other monetary assets : 681
— inventory 26
— monetary liabilities assumed (1,963)
— net deferred tax liability (1,117)
— intangible assets recognised ' 8,937
Total net assets acquired 8,396
Goodwill rgcognised 4,060
12,456
Satisfied by:
— cash consideration . 8,531
— contingent consideration 3,925
12,456
Net cash flow on acquisition:
Cash consideration A 8,531
Less: cash acquired (566)
7,965

Goodwill is an intangible asset that represents that portion of the entire business value that cannot be attributed to other income
producing business assets, tangible or intangible. One of the drivers of goodwill is the expected growth of the business from
acquiring new customers. None of the goodwill recognised of $4,060,000 is tax deductible. Of the trade receivable purchased
of $322,000, the gross contractual amount receivable is $646,000.

An intangible asset of $8,937,000 has been recognised comprising ongoing customer relationships that existed at the date of
acquisition and is being amortised over a period of fifteen years. A deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of the
intangible assets. The amortisation charges of the intangible assets will not be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $604,000 have been expensed and are included in administrative expenses as incurred. Tipperary
contributed $691,000 of revenue and $224,000 of operating profit to the Group's results for the period between the date of

" acquisition and the balance sheet date. Had the acquisition of Tipperary occurred on 1 January 2020, Group revenue would

have been approximately $3,160,000 higher and Group operating profit would have been approximately $695,000 higher.

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the Group to pay up to $3.9m (€3.2m) depending on a number of uncertain
future events.
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30. Acquisitions (continued)

Hidrospot S.A.S.

On 30 November 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Waterlogic Holdings Limited, acquired 100% of the share capital of
Hidrospot S.A.S. ("Hidrospot") for total consideration of $4.3 million. Hidrospot is @ POU business based in Colombia with
approximately 4,000 Machines in Field. The objective of the acquisition was to provide an entry into a new territory. The
preliminary purchase price allocation is set out below.

Fair value
$'000
Net assets acquired: '
— property, plant and equipment 632
- intangible assets ‘ 2
— trade receivables ‘ 161
~ other monetary assets 188
— inventory 89
— monetary liabilities assumed (184)
- net deferred tax liability (274)
- intangible assets recognised 905
Total net assets acquired : ) 1,519
Goodwill recognised . 2,759
4,278
Satisfied by:
— cash consideration 4,278
4,278
Net cash flow on acquisition:
Cash consideration 4,278
Less: cash acquired (152)
4,126

Goodwill is an intangible asset that represents that portion of the entire business value that cannot be attributed to other income
producing business assets, tangible or intangible. One of the drivers of goodwill is the availability of opportunities as a result of
entering a new direct market. None of the goodwill recognised of $2,759,000 is tax deductible. Of the trade receivable purchased
of $161,000, the gross contractual amount receivable is $180,000.

Intangible assets of $305,000 have been recognised comprising brand value and ongoing customer relationships that existed
at the date of acquisition and are being amortised over periods of five and fifteen years respectively. A deferred tax liability has
been recognised in respect of the intangible assets. The amortisation charges of the intangible assets will not be deductible for
tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $217,000 have been expensed and are included in administrative expenses as incurred. Hidrospot
contributed $118,000 of revenue and $28,000 of operating profit to the Group's results for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date. Had the acquisition of Hidrospot occurred on 1 January 2020, Group revenue would
have been approximately $928,000 higher and Group operating profit would have been approximately $181,000 higher.
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30. Acquisitions (continued) .
Vatternet Aqua Concilio AB, Thoreau International AB and Waterconcept AB

On 30 December 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Aquanor Holding AB, acquired 100% of the share capital of Vatternet
Aqua Concilio AB, Thoreau International AB and Waterconcept AB ("Thoreau") for total consideration of $3.9 million. Thoreau
is a Swedish POU business with B2B and HoReCa elements, and is also a franchisor of an Horeca brand used in many other
European countries. The objective of the acquisition was to increase customer density within the existing Swedish market. The
preliminary purchase price allocation is set out below.

Falr value
$:000
Net assets acquired:
— property, plant and equipment _ ) 43
- right-of-use assets . 206
—trade receivables mMm
— other monetary assets . : 25
—inventory 236
— monetary liabilities assumed (722)
- net deferred tax liability (797)
— intangible assets recognised 3,868
Total net assets acquired 2,970
Goodwill recognised . 902
3,872
Satisfied by:
— cash consideration 3,872
3,872
Net cash flow on acquisition:
Cash consideration 3,872
Less: cash acquired (35)
. 3,837

Goodwill is an intangible asset that represents that portion of the entire business value that cannot be attributed to other income
producing business assets, tangible or intangible. One of the drivers of goodwill is the assembled workforce. None of the
goodwill recognised of $902,000 is tax deductible. Of the trade receivable purchased of $111,000, the gross contractual amount -
receivable is $136,000.

Intangible assets of $3,868,000 have been recognised comprising brand value and ongoing customer relationships that existed
at the date of acquisition and are being amortised over a period of ten years. A deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of the intangible assets. The amortisation charges of the intangible assets will not be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $189,000 have been expensed and are included in administrative expenses as incurred. Thoreau
contributed $nil revenue and $nil operating profit to the Group's results for the period between the date of acquisition and the
balance sheet date. Had the acquisition of Thoreau occurred on 1 January 2020, Group revenue would have been approximately
$2,016,000 higher and Group operating profit would have been approximately $401,000 higher.
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30. Acquisitions (continued)

Prisma Water SpA and Prisma Water Home SpA

On 31 December 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Zeal Chile SpA, acquired 100% of the share capital of Prisma Water
SpA and Prisma Water Home SpA ("Prisma”) for total consideration of $1.6 million. Prisma is a POU machine provider based
in Chile. The objective of the acquisition was to expand the customer base in Chile through entry into the HoReCa market. The
preliminary purchase price allocation is set out below.

Fair vatue
$'000
Net assets acquired:
- property, plant and equipment ) 155
- trade receivables 31
— ofher monetary assets ‘ 50
— inventory 31
— monetary liabilities assumed (305)
— net deferred tax liability (213)
—intangible assets recognised 665
Total net assets acquired 414
Goodwill recognised 1,146
1,560
Satisfied by:
— cash consideration 1 ,560
1,560
Net cash flow on acquisition:
Cash consideration . 1,560
Less: cash acquired ()]
1,553

Goodwill is an intangible asset that represents that portion of the entire business value that cannot be attributed to other income
producing business assets, tangible or intangible. One of the drivers of goodwill is the potential for future growth in a new
HoReCa market in Latin America. None of the goodwill recognised of $1,146,000 is tax deductible. Of the trade receivable
purchased of $31,000, the gross contractual amount receivable is $55,000. '

Intangible assets of $ 664,000 have been recognised comprising brand value, non-compete agreements and ongoing customer
relationships that existed at the date of acquisition and are being amortised over periods of ten, five and fifteen years
respectively. A deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of the intangible assets. The amortisation charges of the
intangible assets will not be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $257,000 have been expensed and are included in administrative expenses as incurred. Prisma
contributed $nil revenue and $nil operating profit to the Group's results for the period between the date of acquisition and the
balance sheet date. Had the acquisition of Prisma occurred on 1 January 2020, Group revenue would have been approximately
$129,000 higher and Group operating profit would have been approximately $125,000 lower.

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited | Annual report and accounts 2020 75



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31. Notes to the cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $000

Movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 9,735 (9,484)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 5,459 (6,013)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (8,465) 12,678
(Decrease) in deferred revenue (766) (252)
Net effect of working capital movements 5,963 (3,071)

Net cash and cash equivalents
. Cash for restricted use 3,925 -
Cash 80,168 23,485
Cash and cash equivalents - 84,093 23,485
Bank overdrafts - -
Net cash and cash equivalents 84,093 23,485

Cash comprises bank and cash batances, short-term bank deposits and money market funds with a weighted average maturity
of three months or less. Cash for restricted use is cash held in escrow relating to expected future payments due in respect of
acquisition activity undertaken in the current year. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair

value.

Reconciliation of movements in net debt

Bank Accrued
Borrowings Loans from interest due Cash
(net of parent to parent Finance Tota! and cash
prepaid fees) undertaking undertaking leases borrowings equivalents Net debt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000

Net debt at 1 January 2020:
Due within twelve months (18,240) - - (10,894) (29,134) - (29,134)
Due after more than twelve
months (598,485) (202,218) (92,521) (29,256) (922,480) - (922,480)
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - 23,485 23,485
At 1 January 2020 (616,725) (202,218) (92,521) (40,150) (951,614) 23,485  (928,129)
Cash flows (98,352) - - 13,961 (84,391) 59,351 (25,040)
Non-cash flows (73) (99,347) 71,260 (13,736) (41,896) - (41,896)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) (60,638) (24,325) (1,325) (2,494) (88,782) 1,257 (87,525)
Net debt at 31 December 2020:
Due within twelve months (367) - - (12,388) (12,755) - (12,755)
Due after more than twelve
months (775,421)  (325,890) (22,586) (30,031) (1,153,928) - (1,153,928)
Cash and cash equivalents 84,093 84,093
At 31 December 2020 (775,788) (325,890) (22,586) (42,419) (1,166,683) 84,093 (1,082,590)
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31. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

Reconciliation of movements in net debt (continued)

Bank Accrued
Borrowings Loans from interest due Cash
(net of parent to parent Finance Total and cash
prepaid fees) undertaking undertaking leases bormowings equivalents Net debt
y $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net debt at 1 January 2019:
Due within twelve months . - - - (439) (439) - (439)
Due after more than twelve
months (482,813) (206,352) (73,365) (1,240) (763,770) -~ (763,770)
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - 46,558 46,558
At 1 January 2018 (482,813) (206,352) (73,365) (1,679) (764,209) 46,558  (717,651)
Cash flows (138,470) - - 12,008  (126,462) (24,122) (150,584)
Non-cash flows - - (14,157) . (49,784) (63,941) - (63,941)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 4,558 4,134 (4,999) (695) 2,998 1,049 4,047
Net debt at 31 December 2019:
Due within twelve months (18,240) - - (10,894) (29,134) - (29,134)
Due after more than twelve
months (598,485) (202,218) (92,521) (29,256) (922,480) - (922,480)
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - 23,485 23,485
At 31 December 2019 (616,725) (202,218) (92,521) (40,150)  (951,614) 23,485 (928,129)

32. Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessor

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Rental income under operating leases recognised in the year 155,666 140,075

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with rental customers for the following future minimum lease payments:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Within one year 139,362 126,551
In the second to fifth years inclusive 130,911 152,331
After five years 914 337
271,187 279,219

The lessee does not have the option to buy the leased equipment at the end of the lease term, although this may be negotiated
at the request of the lessee. Any renewal or extension of the lease term is normally subject to negotiation of a new rental

agreement by both parties.

33. Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes

The Group does not operate retirement benefit schemes for any employees.

Some subsidiaries within the Group make contributions based on annual salary to employees' private pension schemes or to
statutory bodies, including the state-managed scheme operated by the French government, as set out in note 26. Other than
amounts that are deducted from employees’ remuneration and accrued pending payment to the pension fund or statutory body
concerned, no further obligations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties’
.entirely separate from the Group. The amount charged for the year was $3,719,000 (2019: $3,744,000) and the balance
outstanding as at 31 December 2020 was $86,000 (2019: $23,000).
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34. Financial instruments

Capital management objectives

The Group manages its capital to ensure entities within the Group are able to continue operating on a going concem basis
while maximising the return to stakeholders through optimising the balance between Group debt and equity. The Group's
overall strategy has evolved in response to growth opportunities pursued both organically and through acquisition, as well as

to the external financial environment and the availability of funding from external institutions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 21, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained eamings

as disclosed in notes 27 to 29.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Group regularly reviews the cost of capital and

the risks associated with each class of capital.

Categories of financial instruments

2020 2019
$'000 $:000
Financial assets
At amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 84,093 23,485
Trade and other receivables 78,721 74,613
162,814 98,098
At fair value:
Derivative financial instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 434 2
163,248 98,100
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost:
Borrowings 1,124,264 911,464
Lease liabilities 42,419 40,150
Trade and other payables 67,275 69,532
Other long-term obligations 9 8
Deferred consideration - 6,040 3,066
1,240,007 1,024,220
At fair value:
" Derivative financial instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships - 171
1,240,007 1,024,391
g
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34, Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities in a designated hedging relationship '

Further details of derivatives are provided in note 22.

Interest rate cap contracts
The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate cap contracts outstanding as at
the reporting date:

Cash flow hedges
Average contract fixed interest

rate Notional principal value Fair value
2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2019
Qutstanding interest rate caps % % - $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
One to three months 0.70% 0.81% 341,004 289,953 - 2

The Group entered into the interest rate cap arrangements in relation to variable rate loans. The caps have been valued at no
intrinsic value as at the year end as the forward curve for the relevant rates do not exceed the cap strike at any point in time
over the life of the caps as at 31 December 2020. The floating reference rate for the caps denominated in Pounds Sterling is 3
months' LIBOR, on the caps denominated in Euros is 3 months' EURIBOR and on the cap denominated in Australian Dollars is
3 months' BBSW. The Group paid a premium of $684,077 for the caps in July 2018.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury. It co-ordinates access to financial markets and
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude. The financial risks considered include market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The
use of financial derivatives is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles to guide
the finance function in addressing all such risks, and the appropriate use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial
instruments and the investment of excess liquidity. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. '

Further information about the nature of these risks and the mitigations in place are set out in the principal risks and
uncertainties set out in the Strategic Report out on pages 1 to 9.

Foreign currency

The carrying amounts of the Group's currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31 December 2020
and 2019 were as foliows:

Liabilites Assets
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
US Dollar (20,432) (60,541) 29,385 11,029
Euro : {981,523) (705,476) 21,163 16,682
Swedish Krona (9,171) (6,192) 5,160 5274
Norwegian Kroner (4,935) (5,428) 7,690 3,604
GB Pound Sterling © (132,208) (166,270) 68,203 42,450
Australian Dollar (80,860) (70,867) 19,199 10,166
Other currencies (10,878) (9,617) 12,448 8,895
(1,240,007) (1,024,391) 163,248 98,100
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34. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuations in the Australian Dollar, the Norwegian Kroner, the Euro and Pounds Sterling.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10 per cent increase or decrease in the US Dollar against the relevant
foreign currencies. 10 per cent is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk intemnally to key management
personnel and represents the Directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible significant movement in foreign exchange rates
over the near term (three to twelve months). The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10 per cent change in foreign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the Group where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A negative number below indicates a decline
in profits and other equity where the US Dollar strengthens 10 per cent against the relevant currency. For a 10 per cent
weakening of the US Dollar against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit and other equity
and the balances below would be positive.

Impact on profit and

loss Impact on equity
2020 2019 2020 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Profit/(loss)
Australian Dollar impactt) ) 1,064 806 6,833 5,154
Norwegian Kroner impact (209) 201 155 (231)
Euro impacti ' 57,441 40,186 1,331 4,099
Pounds Sterling impact(v) 34,243 37,492 (23,700) (18,430)

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure to ouistanding Australian Dollar payables and borrowings at the balance sheet date.
(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure to outstanding Norwegian Kroner payables at the balance sheet date.

(iii) This is mainly attributable to the exposure on Euro borrowings and receivables at the balance sheet date.

(iv) This is mainly attributable to the exposure on Pounds Sterling payables at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the year-
end exposure calculated above reflects neither the foreign exchange gain/loss incurred on the translation of non-monetary
assets and liabilities held within foreign operations, nor the foreign exchange exposure arising from foreign currency transactions
during the period.

Interest rates

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the utilisation of interest rate caps. Hedging activities are evaluated reguiarly to align with interest rate views and
defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A one per cent increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk intemally to key management personnel and represents the Directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been one per cent higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would decrease by $6,853,000 (2019: $4,899,000). If interest rates had been one per cent lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase by $167,000 (2019:
increase by $1,638,000). This is attributable.to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bomowings.

If interest rates had been one per cent higher and all other variables were held constant, other comprehensive income would
decrease by $72,000 (2019: $726,000). If interest rates had been one per cent lower and all other variables were held constant,
other comprehensive income would increase by $73,000 (2019: $4,000).
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34. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics.

The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. With the exception of cash deposits
held by the Group's principal banker, concentration of credit risk relating to any single counterparty did not exceed 10 per cent
of gross monetary assets (2019: 10 per cent).

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are primarily banks with
high credit ratings assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount recorded for financial assets in the Financial Statements is net of impairment losses and represents the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties. In addition, for contracted
rental agreements, deposits or advances may be held to mitigate risk. The Group also holds legal recourse and can exercise its
right to recover rental equipment from non-performing customers.

For trade receivables the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.
The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical
credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reftect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due
status in terms of the provision matrix. Note 20 includes further details on the loss allowance for trade receivables.

Liquidity and interest risk

The Group maintains committed credit facilities to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to maintain its ongoing operations. The
Group's banking facilities are provided by a syndicate of banks. As at 31 December 2020 the Group had $45.0 million (2019:
$21.4 million) of unutilised multi-currency revolving credit. See note 21 for more detail.

The following table details the Group's remaining maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate yield curves at the balance sheet date.

Weighted
average Less than Three More than
effective three months to One to five five
interest rate months one year years years Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
31 December 2020 .
Trade and other payables 0.0% 67,275 - - - 67,275
Lease liabilities 5.7% 3,867 10,963 27,875 5,869 48,574
Variable rate instruments — bank
borrowings 3.9% 7,712 23,527 895,285 - 926,524
Fixed rate instruments — parent :
company loans 10.2% - - - 658,571 658,571

78,854 34,490 923,160 664,440 1,700,944
31 December 2019
Trade and other payables 0.0% 69,632 - - - 69,532
Lease liabilities 5.6% 2,931 9,548 26,081 7,766 46,326
Variable rate instruments — bank :
borrowings 3.8% 6,199 18,580 100,100 601,737 726,616
Fixed rate instruments — parent :
company loans 10.2% - - - 402,107 402,107

78,662 28,128 126,181 1,011,610 1,244,581
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34. Financial instruments (continued)

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets as recognised-at 31 December
2020 and 2019. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including
interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary to
understand the Group's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

Weighted .
average Less than Three More than
effective one One to three months to One to five five .
interest rate month months one year years years Total

Non-derivative financial assels % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
31 December 2020
Non-interest-bearing 0.00% 116,233 - - - - 116,233
Variable interest rate
instruments 0.09% 47,015 - - - - 47,015

163,248 - - - 163,248

31 December 2019
Non-interest-bearing - restated 0.00% 93,590 - - - - 93,590
Variable interest rate

.instruments 0.03% 4,510 - - .- - 4,510

98,100 - - - - 98,100

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the relevant year
ends presented above.

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted net cash inflows and outflows of derivative instruments that settle on a net basis, and the
undiscounted gross outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement.

When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the reporting date. There were no derivatives in a liability position as
at 31 December 2020. The figures for 2019 were as follows:

Less than Onetothree  Three months One to five Carrying
one month months to one year years Total value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
31 December 2019
Gross settled:
— foreign currency forward contracts
Inflow 1,648 3,182 2,122 - 6,952
Outflow (1,715) (3.250) (2,143) - (7,108)
(67) (68) (21) . - (156) (171)
Financing facilities
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Loan facilities
~ Committed loan facilities:
- amount used — loan from parent undertaking (note 21) 325,890 202,218
— amount used — bank loans (note 21) 775,788 616,725
- amount unused 45,011 21,400
Total loan facilities 1,146,689 840,343
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
Financial Statements approximate their fair values.

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

« the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes listed redeemable notes, bills of exchange,
debentures and perpetual notes);

« the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable
current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

« the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-
optional derivatives and option pricing models for optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward contracts are measured

using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the
contracts. Interest rate caps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on

the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.

Fair value measurements

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair

value. The grouping into Levels 1 to 3 is based on the degree to which their fair value is observable:

« Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

« Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
(in particular the valuation techniques and inputs used). There are no significant unobservable inputs for any of the financial
instruments shown in the table.
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Fair value at year end

Financial assets/ 31 December
financial liabilities 2020

31 December
2019

Fair value
hierarchy

Valuation technique(s) and key inputs

Assets:
Interest rate swap  $Nil
Interest rate caps - $Nil

Foreign currency  $434,000
forward contracts

Assets:
$Nil
$2,000
$Nil

Level 2

Interest rate swap and caps:

Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates
(from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting period)
and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of the various counterparties. ’

Foreign currency forward contracts:

Foreign currency forward contracts were valued using the mid
point of the FX curve prevailing on the reporting date. The fair
value represents the net present value of the difference between
the contracted rate and the valuation rate when applied to the
projected balances for the period from the reporting date to the
contracted maturity dates.

Liabilities:
Foreign currency
forward contracts  $Nil

Interest rate swaps $Nil

Liabilities:

$171,000

$Nil

Level 2

Foreign currency forward contracts:

Foreign currency forward contracts were valued using the mid
point of the FX curve prevailing on the reporting date. The fair
value represents the net present value of the difference between
the contracted rate and the valuation rate when applied to the
projected balances for the period from the reporting date to the
contracted maturity dates.

Interest rate swaps:

Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates
(from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting period)
and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of the various counterparties.

35. Events after the balance sheet date

On 26 February 2021 Mercus Refreshment Services Inc (“Mercus”), a company incorporated in South Carolina, USA merged
into Waterlogic Americas LLC for consideration of $7.3 million. Mercus is a leading provider of POU and Coffee machines in
North and South Carolina, USA. Due to the short period of time which has elapsed since the acquisition, a reasonable estimate
of the financial effects of this transaction cannot be made at the date of signing of these financial statements.

36. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed

below.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Senior Executive Management Committee members, who are the key management personnel of
the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Year ended 31 December

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

2020 2019
$'000 $000
2,286 2,256
35 47
2,321 " 2,303

As part of the MIP, a related party, Firewall Investments S.A., offers the scheme participants a limited-recourse loan to
purchase the shares which carries a market interest rate of 5% per annum. The loan value can be for part of the investment
value only and is secured against the underlying shares purchased. The loans are repayable only on an exit of the ultimate

controlling parties.

At 31 December 2020 the value of the outstanding loans held by the scheme participants was $4.5 million (31 December

2019: $5.8 million).
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37. Restatement

Prior year comparatives have been restated to reclassify $7,831,000 from the statement of comprehensive income to
administrative expenses within the consolidated income statement. These costs relate to corporate reorganisation. -

As previously Prior period
stated adjustment As restated
$'000 $'000 $000
Administrative expenses (197,621) (7.831) (205,452)
Corporate reorganisation costs (6,229) (7,831) (14,060)
Operating profit ’ 26,061 (7,831) 18,230
Loss before tax (21,413) (7.831) (29,244)
Other comprehensive expense (21,464) 7,831 (13,633)

38. Ultimate controlling party

The Company’s immediate parent is Firewall Holding s.a.rl., a company incorporated in Luxembourg. The ultimate
controlling parties are EPIC Fund | SLP and EPIC Fund | Sidecar SLP, who hold the majority control. Waterlogic Group
Holdings Limited is the largest group at which consolidated financial statements are available. The registered office of

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited is 1 Grenfell Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, England, SL6 1HN.
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings ) (of} 37,080 30,293
Loans and other receivables C5 238,746 183,711
Total non-current assets 275,836 214,004
Current assets
Trade and other receivables Cc6 16,603 44,519
Cash and cash equivalents ' 1 24
Total current assets 16,604 44,543
Total assets 292,440 258,547
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital Cc9 43,036 40,360
Retained earnings (18,743) (12,530)
Total equity 24,293 27,830
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings Cc7 255,292 223,527
Total non-current liabilities . 255,292 223,527
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (01:] 12,855 7,190
Total current liabilities 12,855 7,190
Total liabilities 268,147 230,717
Total equity and liabilities 292,440 258,547

The Company's loss for the year was £6,213,000 (2019 (restated): loss £3,145,000) and other comprehensive loss for the year
was £nil (2019 (restated — note C10): £nil).

The company Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 29 April 2021 and
were signed on its behalf by:

lhow A—

Huw Jenkins
Group Chief Financial Officer

Company number 09297208

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited | Annual report and accounts 2020 87



Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Note £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2019 40,360 (9,385) 30.975.
Loss for the year — restated” - (3,145) (3,145)
Other comprehensive income for the year — restated* - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (3.145) (3,145)
Balance at 31 December 2019 40,360 (12,530) 27,830
Loss for the year : - (6.213) (6,213)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (6,213) (6,213)
Shares issued in the year (0f°] 2,676 - 2,676
Balance at 31 December 2020 43,036 (18,743) 24,293

* see note C10.
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Notes to the company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

C1. General information

Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited (“the Company’) is a limited company domiciled and incorporated in England and Wales

under the registration number 09297208.
The address of its registered office and principal place of business is 1 Grenfell Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, SL6 1HN.

The Company's principal activity is that of a holding company of the Group. The Group's principal activities are set out in the
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report on pages 1 to 12 of the consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company had no employees other than the Directors in the current and prior year.
C2. Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include certain financial
instruments at fair value, and in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland” and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, including the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are presented in GBP which is the functional currency of the Company and
are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where otherwise indicated.

In accordance with FRS 102, the Company has taken advantage of the exemptions from the following disclosure
requirements:

e Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flow and related notes and
disclosures;

e« Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ & Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument Issues’ — Carrying amounts,
interest income/expense and net gains/losses for each category of financial instrument; basis of determining fair
values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches, details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised
in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income;

e Section 26 ‘Share based payments’;

e Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures' — Compensation for key management personnel; and

e Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — Transactions between wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual entity and not about its group. The above
exemptions are taken on the basis that the Company is a qualifying entity included within the consolidated financial statements
of its group and that the shareholders have not objected to these exemptions being applied. The financial statements of the
Company are consolidated in the financial statements of the Group on pages 1 to 85.

As permitted by section 408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own statement of comprehensive income.
The Company's loss for the year was £6,213,000 (2019 (restated — note C10): loss £3,145,000) and other comprehensive loss
for the year was £nil (2019 (restated — note C10): £nil).

Going concern
The Group’s business activities and position in the market are described in the Strategic Report. The Directors believe that the

Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully. Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the
Financial Statements on a going concern basis. Further detail is contained in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 9.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise except for:

« exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below under financial
instruments); and

+ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the fareign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to the income statement on disposal or
partial disposal of the net investment.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C2. Accounting Policies (continued)

Other income

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense. Current tax assets are recognised
when tax paid exceeds the tax payable.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from total comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is not discounted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date. Timing differences are
differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in
tax assessments in different periods from their recognition in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is recognised on income or expenses from subsidiaries that will be assessed to or allow for tax in a future period
except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the timing difference and it is probable that the timing difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited to the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or equity, when the tax follows the transaction or event it relates to and is also charged or credited
to other comprehensive income, or equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if and only if, there is
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Fixed asset investments
Investments in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Investments in subsidiaries are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. Any impairment losses or reversals of
impairment losses are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial instruments
The Company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial
Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102, in full, to all of its financial instruments.

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets are classified into specified categories. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of recognition.

Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future
receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Other financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value.

Loans and receivables

Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as ‘loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction,
where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Other
financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at the transaction price, including transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is
included in interest payable and other similar charges.

Loans ffom other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially recorded at fair value, which is generally the proceeds
received. They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost. The loans are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or they

expire.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Dividends payable
on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the Company.

Derivatives

Derivatives are inilially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to fair value at each reporting end date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. '

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset, whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability.

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, including derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-derivatives, as
either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item along with risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. At the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges .
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the Income
Statement immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. ’ ’

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as-cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, and is included in the
‘other gains and losses' line in this item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged item is recognised in the profit or loss in the same line as of the Income Statement as the ineffective
hedged costs. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged resuits in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability,
the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the
cost of the asset or liability concerned.

C3. Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C3. Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There were no estimates or assumptions which had a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for 2019 or 2020.

C4. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

£'000

Balance at 1 January 2019

Investments in the year

30,293

Balance at 31 December 2019

Investments in the year

30,293
6,797

Balance at 31 December 2020

37,090

During the year the Company subscribed for one share in Waterlogic Holdings Limited for a total consideration of GBP 6,797,535
being the release of the obligation to repay part of outstanding interest in the amount of EUR 7,637,030.

Shares in subsidiary undertakings represent the Company's investment in the entities listed below. The Directors believe that

the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are set out below. The registered office addresses for these
companies are provided in note 18 to the Group financial statements.

Ownership interest

Country of registration or Direct Indirect
Company name incorporation Principal activity Class of shares % %
Aguapura Aguaviva S.L Spain Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Andrew's Water Treatment England and Wales
Limited Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Angel Springs Holdings England and Wales
Limited Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Aqua Cure Limited England and Wales Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Aqua Cure (Scotland) Limited Scotland Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Agquanor Holding AB (formerly
Waterlogic Holding AB) Sweden Holding company Ordinary . - 100%
Aquarius X1 Limited England and Wales Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Billi Australia Pty Limited Australia Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Billi Financial Services Pty Ltd Australia Finance Ordinary - 100%
Billi R&D Pty Ltd Australia Product development Ordinary - 100%
Billi UK LLP England and Wales Distribution and service N/a - 100%
Bronte Spring Water Limited  England and Wales Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Bronte Water Coolers Limited England and Wales Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Cameron Water Limited Scotland Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Cariad Cool Water Limited England and Wales Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Embotelladora Perla Ciara
SpA Chile Bottling, distribution and service  Ordinary - 100%
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Notes to the company financial statements (continuec)

C4. Subsidiaries (continued)

Ownership interest

Country of registration or Direct Indirect
Company name incorporation Principal activity Class of shares % %
Escowa AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Fillongley Spring Water England and Wales Bottling and distribution Ordinary - 100%
Limited
Fillongley Ventures Limited England and Wales Holding Company Ordinary - 100%
GLGB Limited England and Wales Holding Company Ordinary - 100%
Hidrospot SAS Colombia Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Industrial Hot & Cold Limitada Chile Fabrication facility Ordinary - 100%
Interior Vatten Skane AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Kingshill Mineral Water Limited Scotland Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Office Beverages Limited England and Wales Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Office Watercoolers (S.W.) England and Wales
" Limited Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Palmheath Investments British Virgin Islands
Limited Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Pelican Technical Solutions England and Wales Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Limited
Prisma Water SpA Chile Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Prisma Water Home SpA Chile Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Puralia Systems SLU Spain Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Qingdao Waterlogic
Manufacturing Co. Limited People's Republic of China Manufacturer Ordinary - 100%
Reservdelar i Sverige AB Sweden Distribution Ordinary - 100%
Svensk Storkoksservice AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Thoreau International AB Sweden Distribution and franchisor Ordinary - 100%
Tipperary Pure lrish Water Ireland
(Sales) Unlimited Company Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Vattentornet Aqua Concilio AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany BV Netherlands Distribution and service . Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany Home Netherlands
Products BV Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Watercompany International  Netherlands : - 100%
BV Holding company Ordinary
Waterconcept AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterfirst Queensland Pty Ltd Australia Dormant Ordinary - 100%
Preferred/
Waterlogic Americas LLC United States of America  Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Australia Holdings
Pty Limited Australia Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Australia Pty
Limited Australia Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Belgium BVBA Belgium Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Canada Inc Canada Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Chile SPA Chile Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Commercial . .
Products LLC United States of America  Distribution Ordinary - 100%
. Waterlogic CZ sro Czech Republic Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Danmark Aps Denmark Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
(formerly Aqualine Aps)
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C4. Subsidiaries (continued)

Ownership interest

Country of registration or Direct Indirect
Company name incorporation Principal activity Class of shares % %
Waterlogic Finance Limited England and Wales Finance Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Finance 2 Limited England and Wales Finance Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic France SAS France Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic GB Limited England and Wales
(formerly Angel Springs
Limited) Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic GmbH Germany Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Holdings GmbH Germany Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Holdings Limited  England and Wales Holding company Ordinary 100% -
Waterlogic Hydration Services
Limited (formerly All Water
Systems Limited) Ireland Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic International Bahamas
Limited Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Limited Jersey Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Magyarorszag Hungary - 100%
Hungaéria Korlatolt Felelosségl
Tarsasag Distribution and service Ordinary
Waterlogic Norge AS Norway Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Sverige AB Sweden Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic Tipperary Water Ireland
Limited . Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic UK Limited England and Wales Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic USA Finance Inc  United States of America Finance Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic USA Holdings Inc  United States of America Holding company Ordinary - 100%
Waterlogic USA Inc United States of America Holding and

management service  Ordinary - 100%
company

WLI Trading Limited Ireland Distribution Ordinary - 100%
WLI (UK) Limited England and Wales Service company Ordinary - 100%
Zeal Chile S.A. Chile Distribution and service Ordinary - 100%
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
C4. Subsidiaries (continued) '

Parent company guarantees

The following subsidiary companies are exempt from the requirements under the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of
financial statements under section 479A of that Act. Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited has provided a parent company
guarantee over the liabilities of each of these subsidiary companies, pursuant to section 479C of the Companies Act 2006.

Company name Company number
Andrew’s Water Treatment Limited 06772267
Angel Springs Holdings Limited 07617386
Agua Cure Limited 06330499
Aqua Cure (Scotland) Limited ) S$C232827
Aquarius X1 Limited 04212212
Billi UK LLP 0C381177
Bronte Spring Water Limited 11769185
Bronte Water Coolers Limited 03338516
Cameron Water Limited SC181505
Cariad Cool Water Limited 04186182
Fillongley Spring Water Limited 07555626
Fillongley Ventures Limited 07680170
GLGB Limited 08510820
Kingshill Mineral Water Limited SC221124
Office Beverages Limited 09111912
Office Watercoolers (S.W.) Limited 04268234
Waterlogic Finance Limited 08899276
Waterlogic Finance 2 Limited 11415204
Waterlogic Holdings Limited 09297346
Waterlogic UK Limited 04832980
WLI (UK) Limited 04051205

C5. Non-current assets: loans and other receivables

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 238,746 183,711
C6. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019 -

£'000 £'000
Accrued interest due from Group undertakings : 16,517 44,284
Other amounts receivable from Group companies 22 207
Other receivables 64 28
Amounts owed by Group companies 16,603 44,519

Loans to Group companies attract interest at fixed rates of between 10.0% and 10.2% per annum, are unsecured and fall due

for repayment in 2044. Interest is not compounded on accrued interest.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C7. Borrowings .
2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Accrued interest due to parent undertaking . 16,546 70,167
Loan from parent undertaking ) 238,746 153,360

255,292 223,527

Amounts due for settiement after twelve months
Accrued interest due to parent undertaking 16,546 70,167
Loan from parent undertaking 238,746 153,360

255,292 223,527

All borrowings and accrued interest are denominated in Euros (2019: Euros). The loan from the parent undertaking and
associated accrued interest are repayable after more than five years.

Fees charged on facilities are assessed on an annual basis with the majority of fees being paid on a quarterly or calendar year
basis. Any fees are included in the determination of the effective interest rate and are charged to the Income Statement over
the life of the facility, except where the Directors judge that the facility is unlikely to be used at which time the unamortised
fees are immediately expensed through the Income Statement.

The weighted average effective interest rates paid during the year:

2020 2019
% %
Related party loans 10.2 10.2

Related party loans are repayable on 28 April 2030. These loans comprise 10.2% fixed rate unsecured loan notes which were
listed on the International Stock Exchange, Guernsey, on 5 November 2020. Interest is payable annually, and any unpaid
interest will accrue on an annual non-compounding basis. The loan notes are held by several retated parties including the
parent undertaking, one minority owner with significant influence and other minority owners without significant influence.

There have been no breaches of loan agreements during the period covered by the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
C8. Trade and other payables

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Trade creditors _ 886 458
Amounts owed to group undertakings : 11,875 3,285
Accruals 94 3,447

12,855 7,190

C9. Share capital and reserves
Share capital

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Allotted, issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £1 each 43,036 40,360
Issue of new shares

On 28 April 2020 2,675,501 Ordinary shares were issued at par. No share premium arose in relation to this transaction. No
further share transactions took place during 2020.

Number
Share capital in issue at 1 January 2019 40,360,389
Shares issued in the year -
Share capital in issue at 31 December 2019 40,360,389
Shares issued in the year 2,675,501
Share capital in issue at 31 December 2020 43,035,890

The Company has one class of Ordinary Shares, which carry no right to fixed income. There is no limit on the number of
shares that the Company can issue. :

Reserves
The Company's reserves represent the following:

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumutative profit and loss, net of distributions to owners.

Share based payments

Some eligible senior employees (the ‘employees’) participate in a Management Incentive Programme scheme (MIP), whereby
they paid full market value for shares in a non-Group MIP entity, granted to them under the MIP. As the employées paid full
market value for the shares there is no benefit to the employees as a result of the issue of the MIP shares to them. Accordingly,
no share-based payment charge is recognised in the Group financial statements for the granting of the MIP shares to the
employees.

Under the MIP, the employees were able to receive a non-Group funded loan to fund between 0% and 100% of the full market
value for the shares granted to them under the MIP. As the loans were issued to the employees on market terms and bear
interest at 5% there is no benefit arising from this aspect of the loans. There is a potential benefit to the employees if, on the
eventual sale of the Group, the total sale proceeds of the MIP shares purchased fall below the loan value plus accrued interest.
In this event the recourse to the employees for repayment of the loans is limited to the value of the proceeds received by the
employees upon the eventual sale of the shares. Due to the low probability that the circumstances necessary to crystallise this
benefit would occur, the potential share based payment charge to the Group is considered to be not material and no charge has
therefore been reflected in the financial statements.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

C10. Restatement

Prior year comparatives have been restated to reclassify £5,939,000 from the statement of comprehensive income to
administrative expenses within the consolidated income statement. These costs relate to corporate reorganisation.

As previously Prior period
stated adjustment As restated
£'000 £000 £'000
Profit/(loss) for the year 2,794 (5,939) (3,145)
Other comprehensive income (5,939) 5,939 -

C11. Uitimate controlling party

The Company's immediate parent is Firewall Holding s.a.r.l., a company incorporated in Luxembourg. The ultimate controlling
parties are EPIC Fund | SLP and EPIC Fund | Sidecar SLP, who hold the majority control. Waterlogic Group Holdings Limited
is the largest group at which consolidated financial statements are available. The registered office of Waterlogic Group Holdings
Limited is 1 Grenfell Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire SL6 1HN.
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